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Financial Summary

MR

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS TLAE 05 BB

For the year ended 31 December ~ HE12 A31 HIEFE 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Operating Results F-F 3

Gross profit margin (%) EFIE (%) 32.8 40.4 40.5 424 13
Operating profit margin (%) BEREE (%) 132 19.8 287 2.9 315
Net profit margin (%) (Note 1) SZHI= (%) (AiF1) 10.7 15.1 232 03 284
Return on equity (%) FRAREIERE (%) 6.7 22.1 385 06 58.8
Financial Position BIEARR

Total assets (HK$'000) REE (TAT) 329,045 197,409 165,963 160,594 129,476
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEY (FET)

(HK$'000) 76,928 15,584 23,493 19,349 22,764
Total bank loans (HK$'000) RITERERE (TAT) - 28,205 23,850 26,477 -
Total equity attributable to ARAEERR

equity shareholders [ElhiE=eE (FEr)

of the Company (HK$'000) 306,869 135,839 97,055 50,581 44,192
Financial Ratios B =
Current ratio (times) REILLA (1) 8.4 145 .1 0.62 0.92
Quick ratio (times) EEBLLH () 74 1.14 0.87 0.47 0.76
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 2) BELE (%) (A22) - 208 237 51.9 -
Turnover Ratios BEt®=
Inventory turnover (days) FER® (B) 63 54 61 80 70
Debtors turnover (days) FEMER SRS (B) 77 62 49 55 61
Creditors turnover (days) [ERTERFEE (B) 38 36 45 35 29
Operating cycle (days) LIRS (R) 102 80 65 100 102
Notes: e
(1) Net profit represents profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the (1) SERIEE ARSI -

Company.
(2) Gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity as shown 2) BEH RGBSR L S B T (0
in the consolidated statement of financial position. L A BT R IREFTR) o
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MR

The following is a summary of the consolidated income statement AT AAREE 2 GE Wk RirE BN

and consolidated statement of financial position of the Group: RZWE
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT B i R
20m 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
For the year ended 31 December ~ EZ12 831 B IHFE TEx THT FTEn TERT FTERr
Turnover EXH 190,433 199,224 160,714 117,399 91,577
Cost of sales SHERAR (127,888) (118,765) (95,582) (67,624) (53,735)
Gross Profit £Vl 62,545 80,459 65,132 49,775 37,842
Other revenue Hvas 7,204 1,093 305 176 146
Net realised and unrealised REMBRAESRECERR
gain/lloss) on investments in FERMKE/(BR)F8
listed equity securities - - 6,841 (22,370) 10,910
Other net (loss)/income it (&518) /BHFE (373) 290 (370) (490) (629)
Distribution costs DA (12,788) (9,570) (7,446) (7,417) (7,360)
Administrative expenses THRS (31,389) (32,885) (18,323) (16,230) (12,048)
Profit from operations Ry 25,199 39,387 46,139 3,444 28,861
Finance costs AR A (261) (1,614) (1,885) (913) -
Profit before taxation BB ATRR 24,938 37,773 44,254 2,531 28,861
Income tax iR (4,516) (7,000) (3,979) (4,601) (1,481)
Profit/(loss) for the year Frafl/ (&) 20,422 30,773 40,275 2,070) 27,380
Attributable to: AT S IBME
Equity shareholders ANAERBRR
of the Company 20,422 30,071 37,350 312 25,990
Non-controlling interests IR - 702 2,925 (2,382) 1,390
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF R RPN S
FINANCIAL POSITION
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December W12 A3181E FET TER TER TAR TER
Non-current assets FRBERE 142,483 107,980 94,097 93,867 53,079
Fixed assets BT EE
~Property, plant and equipment %1% - BE K& E 107,540 98,139 87,199 83,076 46,777
-Lease prepayment -HERN 4,395 4,285 4,232 4,316 4,151
Intangible assets EVEE 7,463 4,511 - - -
Long-term receivables KRR - - 847 1,055 918
Prepayment for fixed and EIE R ER EER)
intangible assets ARG 21,551 489 875 474 1,111
Deferred tax assets BILHIBAE 1,534 556 944 1,544 122
Other financial assets Hith e a4z - - - 3,402 -
Current assets REBEE 186,562 89,429 71,866 66,727 76,397
Inventories 78 22,995 19,281 15,432 16,283 13,306
Trade and other receivables Ao REMERIE 40,793 53,349 29,688 22,099 20,530
Investments in listed equity REMBABHEE
securities - - - 8,996 19,797
Amount due from related parties  fEUR B8 77 5008 - - 1,034 - -
Current tax recoverable L B 2,297 1,215 2,219 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBSEEY 76,928 15,584 23,493 19,349 22,764
Deposits with banks RITEHER 43,549 - - - -
Total assets BERE 329,045 197,409 165,963 160,594 129,476
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HaMERILER
FINANCIAL POSITION
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December W12 A31 81 TER FERT TER TER TERT
Current liabilities RBEE 22,176 61,570 64,863 107,501 82,899
Trade and other payables ECYE A 20,172 30,445 24,964 27,101 27,261
Amount due to related parties  JE{TEEH A FUR - - 11,051 47,367 53,984
Bank loans BITER - 28,205 23,850 26,477 -
Obligation under finance lease ~ BEEHEE(T - - - 1,354 -
Current tax payable BNERrENTHIR 2,004 2,920 4,998 5,202 1,654
Net current assets/(liabilities) FRBEE /(&fE) T4 164,386 27,859 7,003 (40,773) (6,501)

Total assets less current EREAERRBEE
liabilities 306,869 135,839 101,100 53,093 46,577
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HaMERIE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December W12 A31 81 TER FERT TER TER TERT
Non-current liabilities FREBEE - - 631 2,040 -
Obligation under finance lease ~ BEMEEE - - - 1,566 -
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE - - 631 474 -
Net assets EEFE 306,869 135,839 100,469 51,053 46,577
Capital and reserves EXRRHE 306,869 135,839 97,055 50,581 44,192
Share capital AR 4,150 - 1,000 1,000 1,000
Reserves e 302,719 135,839 96,055 49,581 43,192
Total equity attributable to RN EIERRRE
equity shareholders of LR A%
the Company 306,369 135,839 97,055 50,581 44,192
Non-controlling interests JerEpER - - 3,414 472 2,385
Total equity BB 306,869 135,839 100,469 51,053 46,577
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Chairman’s Statement

EREWE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual
report of KEE Holdings Company Limited for the year ended 31
December 2011.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year 2011, we recorded a slight decrease in the sales of
finished zipper products in the PRC and overseas markets. Our
turnover decreased by approximately 4.4% from HK$199.22
million to HK$190.43 million on a year-on-year basis, primarily due
to weakened sales from our Group's certain branded customers
and the deterioration of the global economic environment.
Notwithstanding the unfavourable business environment, we
still successfully commenced cooperation with 20 new apparel
brand owners, comprising nine local brands and 11 international
brands. As at the end of 2011, we cooperated with 80 apparel
brand owners, out of which 32 are brands from mainland China
and 48 are international brands. We will zealously serve and
maintain a close working relationship with apparel brand owners

and believe we have the capability to increase our sales to them

AANEREREETS MAREFAIERER
NAHZE2011F12A31 BIEFENFR -

B ol

201146 » B2 GER#EREEETE
KBNS EEM T % - KRB EEEA
1.9922 BAE TR E1.90431E8 T - RFR
LH4.4% o WTVERAEBETREEPH
HERD - UREIKEFRIFE R - &
EETHRKERET - BHMDAKIIR 20 &
MR RERFBEEE - BENER RS
B EERGE - HE2011 FFK - &
HB0EREmMEEAIE - EFR32EmERE
R A R A8 B RIS REIR @A - HPIEER
WARE GIE R R IR R B B RE
ZEVERRR - WABEHPIA 88 70 1 H A% hngs



going forward through our ability to provide value adding solutions
which include (i) sharing ideas on how to better utilise zippers
with different distinctive designs, colours and functionalities and
to enhance the appearance and unique characters of apparel; (ii)
coping with the rapidly changing trends and tastes of the apparel
retail market by producing zippers with tailor-made designs and
specific functionalities within a short period of production lead
time; and (iii) offering to design and providing different kinds of
premium items to apparel brand owners in order to complement
their marketing activities.

Our gross profit margin decreased from 40.4% in year 2010 to
32.8% in year 2011 due to (i) the increase in prices of major raw
materials (such as copper and zinc alloy) over the year 2011; (ii)
increase in labour costs; (iii) increase in sales tax and surcharges
due to cancellation of some tax concession policies applicable
to wholly-owned foreign enterprises in China; and (iv) increase
in costs for environmental protection measures. For the same
reasons, the profit attributable to Shareholders decreased
by approximately 32.1% from HK$30.07 million in 2010 to
HK$20.42 million in 2011. We imposed the following measures
to overcome the effect of such increase in costs through
(i) increased production efficiency by means of further automation
in the production process; (i) better cost control on the outsourced
electroplating process; (iii) the introduction of measures to reduce
scrapping; and (iv) adjustment of the number of staff in accordance
with the demands for labour in peak and trough seasons

respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
CHALLENGES AHEAD

In 2011, operating costs have risen greatly for enterprises in China
in general. This is due to factors such as soaring prices of raw
materials, shortage in manufacturing labour, increased costs in
environmental protection and cancellation of some tax concession

policies applicable to wholly-owned foreign enterprises in China.

For year 2012, we anticipate continued uncertainties in the
global economy extending from the euro debt crisis in 2011.
Decline in purchasing power in western countries is expected
to lead to decline in demand for apparel, and thus that for
zippers. Furthermore, newly introduced environmental protection
standards by the European Union prompt higher standards in
environmental friendliness, eco-friendliness and safety standards.
This will prompt us to further improve our production standards.

Nevertheless, we remain optimistic regarding the prospects of our
Group, in particular in China's consumer market.

AR 2K B

2011 - R BEIEEBEMS - KEKRAK
TR 00 o LE TR R EHER L3R - R
EEBT  RERRAENNETERRPE
2EIELENHRAERLBERNBUS

¥R 2012F « BAAITEEAELE B 2011 FHER
EEEEE2EEEETHR - BHEX
BEOTRBEHSIZFHRERRD - Bt
R ERFE KIOR D o Bboh - BB S| ARET
RRBEGERERIRR - ERRERLDIEZ
EHEAEERNEZE - WRERKPE— PN
EBMINEESE -

AW - HRAKENR R - FHZTEHEE
TIHHATSR

PMDARITRER -



Lo
‘/fgf/ﬁ’fﬁ\ JUST FOR YOU

APPRECIATION &

I would like to take this opportunity to express my thanks RAZUKE  RMAEEEEERE TED
and gratitude to our Group's management and staff who TS W RER ARERPIORE - #HE
dedicated their endless efforts and devoted services, and to BeBP RITRHMEZRERETEHN
our Shareholders, suppliers, customers, bankers and other T BUAR R -

professional parties for their continuous support.

Xu Xipeng B
Chairman Bl
Hong Kong, 16 March 2012 E#H 0 2012%3 A 16 H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWR DM

OVERVIEW K

The Group is a producer of finished zippers in China. The Group's AEBRHPRIGENENEER - AEERN
customers for zippers are OEMs who manufacture apparel HNEEPEARA()FPERERE AR (i) 35
products for (i) apparel brands in China; and (i) some well known BRAHEAREREEEREELMNOEM -
international apparel labels. The Group maintains a close working PINS IE@HE%‘%%#‘E%E&#E%EAHE#F%
relationship with apparel brand owners on the design of zippers RN R T TEBRR - RERERD
to be applied on the apparel products. The apparel brand owners EeRHOEMERNBHER I E MZ
usually select zipper suppliers for their OEMs and request such OEMEHLETER - Z2KZF0EM ﬁ$§.‘€l
OEMs to source zippers from the Group when placing orders. PREEHI 52 o

JHE @

m

14




The Group also supplies sliders, components of zippers (including
continuous zipper chains and stops) and moulds to other zipper
manufacturers and designs and supplies premium items such
as glasses, backpacks and watches exclusively to apparel brand
owners to meet the promotional needs for their products.
During the year 2011, approximately 90.1% of the turnover
was derived from sales in China. Other regions to which the
Group sold its products include France, Germany, Korea, India,
Thailand, Vietnam, Morocco, Kenya and Tunisia. In particular, the
Group is a supplier of sliders to a European zipper producer who

manufactures zippers for well known fashion brands.

The Group is a vertically integrated producer for zippers,
except for the electroplating process which is outsourced to an
independent third party. The Group believes the advantages of
vertical integration that the Group benefits from include (i) lower
transaction costs; (ii) higher certainty in the quality of products; (iii)
improved supply chain coordination; (iv) the capture of upstream
and downstream profit margins; and (v) an increase in barriers
to entry for potential competitors. The Group is also capable
of developing its own custom-made production machinery
and modifying conventional machinery so that zippers can be

produced more efficiently and with greater consistency in quality.

The Group’s turnover decreased by approximately 4.4% in the
year 2011 partly due to (i) the euro debt crisis which led to the
global economic downturn; (ii) weakened consumer demand for
apparel products due to tightened macroeconomic policies in
China; (i) increased competition from international apparel brands
that entered the China market on a massive scale during the

year; and (iv) weakened sales from the Group’s certain branded

customers, which affected sales orders placed with the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

A\l

To increase market share in target markets and grasp
opportunities for growth, the Group will focus on the following:
(i) enhance its customer portfolio by seeking opportunities to
work with more international brands; and (i) research and develop
new products with new functionalities. To further increase
the competitiveness of the Group, the Group will enhance its
production process by (i) automation; (i) optimizing the production
flow and reduce scrapping; (iii) improving personnel training to
increase efficiency; (iv) improving efficiency by using the SAP
system to better control inventory, loans and other assets, and (v)
developing a new office automation process to enhance internal

communications.

The Group also has plans to construct a production plant in
Jingmen, Hubei Province, PRC, which will provide accessories for
apparel to our customers. The plant is expected to start production
in year 2013.

O\

RENR BB SNT SN BLMEL R
B ARERIRRARTIER: ()VEBS
KEFZERREAIENRE  RBAAKE
MEFAS + k(i) IR RBERIIEHE
o RE—TIRAREENHEE N NEH
KEBTIEREAAEELETF - ()8
b (i BIEEERERIRDIREE (1)K
ZBTHRIIAE IR ¢ (iv) BEBEMSAPFR
B BAMMEGEE  EXREMEE
ABEME R (v) HEFOBRAZEEBECR
B MRAEER -

REFTFENP BRI EF I REREE
BE - ZBES RN EEEF M IREIR A
o ZMEIEFTIR 2013 FRMAEE -




The gross profit margin for the year 2011 decreased to 32.8%
from 40.4% for the year 2010. The Directors believe that the
decrease in gross profit margin is attributed to (i) increased prices
of major raw materials (such as copper and zinc alloy); (ii) increase
in labour costs; (iii) increase in sales tax and surcharges due to the
cancellation of some tax concession policies applicable to wholly-
owned foreign enterprises in China; and (iv) increase in costs
for environmental protection measures. The Group imposed the
following measures to overcome the effect of such increases in
costs through (i) the Group's increased production efficiency by
means of further automation in the production process; (ii) better
cost control on the outsourced electroplating process; (iii) the
introduction of measures to reduce scrapping; and (iv) adjustment
of the number of staff in accordance with the demands for labour

in peak and trough seasons respectively.

PROSPECTS

Along with the continuous economic growth in China, consumer
purchasing power will gradually increase, thus leading to
increasing demands for products that make use of zippers such
as apparel, bags, upholstery furnishings, camping equipment
and sports equipment, and increasing expectations on quality for

zippers.

Built on the Group’s existing brand portfolio, the Directors intend
to diversify the brand portfolio with both local and international
labels with a view to increasing the Group’'s market share for
quality zippers for both local and international apparel. To this
end, the Group is actively reviewing plans for setting up a branch
office in Europe and increasing experienced marketing and design
personnel in each of the Group’s major geographic regions in
China. The Group has a sales and marketing team consisting
of one assistant marketing director, one senior sales manager,
seven sales managers and 46 sales assistants, who are assigned
to serve all customers in three geographical regions: (i) southern

China; (i) eastern China; and (iii) overseas.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE D

In accordance with the typical industry cycle, the China zipper
industry would experience a period of consolidation in the near
future. While those enterprises with less competitiveness
will be eliminated by market forces, enterprises with stronger
core competencies, higher qualities, larger economic scale and
higher brand recognition would grow, leading to a higher market
concentration. This would raise the barrier of entry for the industry.
The Directors aim to further strengthen the Group’s position in
the quality zipper market and the Group will continue to strive to
achieve growth of business and ensure that the Group remains
competitive through (i) targeted marketing to apparel brand
owners to increase brand awareness in the market, including
plans to set up a branch office in Europe and better training for
sales personnel; (ii) expansion and diversification of finished
zipper offerings in terms of design materials, workmanship,

functions and usages such as finished zippers for footwear

BR—RITFEY  PEURITERTARL
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products, camping equipments, bags and upholstery furnishings;
(iii) strengthening product design, research and development
capabilities by increasing the number of designers and technical
personnel with appropriate qualifications and sending them to
overseas visits, conferences and seminars in order to enhance
their international exposure to the apparel industry; (iv) improving
production facilities to increase automation and shorten
production time; and (v) making more extensive and better use of
SAP and other automation systems which enables the Company’s
subsidiaries and functional departments to better communicate
with one another, better control purchases and inventory levels,

and better monitor deliveries.

The Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 12 January 2011. The net proceeds
received from the initial public offering, including the exercise of
the over-allotment option and after deducting related expenses,
were approximately HK$130 million. Such net proceeds were
deposited at the Group’s bank account and have thus far been
used in the manner consistent with that mentioned in the section
headed “Future plans and proposed use of proceeds” of the
Prospectus. In the event that the Directors decide to use such net
proceeds in a manner different from that stated in the Prospectus,
the Company will issue a further announcement in compliance

with the Listing Rules.

TURNOVER

The Group's turnover for the year 2011 amounted to HK$190.43
million, representing a slight decrease of 4.4% as compared to
the year 2010 primarily as a result of (i) the euro debt crisis which
led to the global economic downturn; (ii) weakened consumer
demand for apparel products due to tightened macroeconomic
policies in China; (iii) increased competition from international
apparel brands that entered the China market on a massive scale
during the year; and (iv) weakened sales from the Group’s certain
branded customers.
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Turnover analysis by product category: RERENEDHEEEIIT
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HLEE
2011 2010
HK$ million % HKS$ million %
BHEET BEATL
Finished zippers REE T i
Metal zippers B 78.82 414 86.77 43.6
Nylon zippers JEBEh i 71.69 37.6 76.99 38.6
Plastic zippers BB 24.38 12.8 19.06 9.6
174.89 91.8 182.82 91.8
Sliders EATAL| 4.87 2.6 5.58 2.8
Premium items em 3.7 1.9 3.06 1.5
Others H 6.96 3.7 7.76 3.9
Total turnover BEXE 190.43 100.0 199.22 100.0
Turnover & #%§
(HK$ million)
(BB8#ET)
199.22
190.43
160.71 By, 1640
OS] . ’:o: 15.54
P 24
117.40 .‘.': 13.77 ;f: e 2438
@AY 16.26 " ’0‘.
N\ N 7699 )
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o o 8 S N 7169
e L a [ >
s 22 p’\. ’:. 67.56 .;. ps‘.
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ol 5 g o P -
a - - N a
”e e o e "
oA o Py oA 86.77 " 78.82
i‘. i i Q6312 G no.
46.56 ’ n i
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Metal zippers Nylon zippers Plastic zippers Sliders, premium items and others
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Turnover analysis by geographic location: BB B DR E XN

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BILEE

2011 2010
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEBTT BEBT
Southern China = 101.14 53.1 106.13 53.3
Eastern China R 70.49 37.0 72.17 36.2
Overseas NSZIN 18.80 9.9 20.92 10.5
Total turnover FEt L 190.43 100.0 199.22 100.0
Turnover & #%E
(HK$ million)
L 199.22
190.43
160.71 !
::: . o N 1880
~ JRTPN e .“o:
117.40 ®a X ™D
". "‘2 7217 .« s
91.58 Ny 1222 "‘o: wn Oy .‘::
N LR N ",
3.09 ". 2549 " " a
o0 8 o8 2 e
a N ‘ o e
> [ [P Lo o
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ 106.1 ‘
e e P sz Fig 1T gad 101M
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Year £

Southern China Eastern China Overseas
a ¥ a #R a =21
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FINISHED ZIPPERS

Revenue from sales of finished zippers decreased by
approximately HK$7.93 million or 4.3% to HK$174.89 million
for the year 2011 (2010: HK$182.82 million) primarily due to a
decrease in sales volume. Such decrease was a result of: (i) the
euro debt crisis which led to the global economic downturn;
(ii) weakened consumer demand for apparel products due
to tightened macroeconomic policies in China; (iii) increased
competition from international apparel brands that entered
the China market on a massive scale during the year; and (iv)
weakened sales from the Group’s certain branded customers,
which affected sales orders placed with the Group. 20 apparel
brand owners, comprising nine local brands and 11 international
brands, commenced cooperation with the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011 as a result of the Group’s successfu
sales and marketing strategies.
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SLIDERS

Sales of sliders decreased by approximately 12.7% to HK$4.87
million for the year 2011 (2010: HK$5.58 million) due to a decrease
in sales orders for sliders from a European zipper producer who
manufactures zippers for well known fashion brands.

PREMIUM ITEMS

Sales of premium items (such as glasses, backpacks and watches)
increased by approximately 21.2% to HK$3.71 million for the year
2011 (2010: HK$3.06 million) due to stronger demand for premium

items by our branded customers for their marketing purposes.

OTHERS

Others represent items such as scrap materials, zipper
components and moulds. Sales of other items decreased by
approximately 10.3% to HK$6.96 million for the year 2011 (2010:
HK$7.76 million) due to a decrease in sales of moulds.

COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

In 2011, the overall cost of sales for the Group amounted to
approximately HK$127.89 million (2010: HK$118.77 million),
representing an increase of approximately 7.7%. The overall

gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 22.3% from
HK$80.46 million in 2010 to HK$62.55 million in 2011. The overall
gross profit margin in 2011 was 32.8% (2010: 40.4%), which
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was attributable to (i) increased prices of major raw materials R (B0 A REAS)EBR LT (DA
(such as copper and zinc alloy); (i) increase in labour costs; (iii) TRGASENN (i) & TEARPREEEINE R
increase in sale tax and surcharges due to cancellation of some 2 ) B TE T 5 BUR O BUH DA BUH & B R B an
tax concession policies applicable to wholly-owned foreign B8N0 5 K (iv) IRIRFE BEA AN G hOFT B ©
enterprises in China; and (iv) increase in costs for environmental

protection measures.
Gross profit analysis by product category: REMBRHEIDBEFR ST

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31MALEE

2011 2010
HK$ million % HKS$ million %
HEBT "BEBTT

Finished zippers BRI IR 59.75 95.5 76.20 94.7
Sliders VAT 1.49 2.4 1.64 2.0
Premium items 2 0.91 1.5 0.49 0.6
Others Hi 0.40 0.6 2.13 2.7
Total gross profit HER 62.55 100.0 80.46 100.0
FINISHED ZIPPERS 6 23 i gl

—

Gross profit for finished zippers decreased by approximately EEE R 8 2 F B 2010 5 #9 76,200,000 7

g
21.6% from HK$76.20 million in 2010 to HK$59.75 million in TR #121.6% £2011 % #59,750,000 /8

2011. Gross profit margin decreased from approximately 41.7% TC o EFERHNI.7% T#¥E34.2% * J5E
to 34.2%, which was attributable to (i) increase in raw materials’ ZHRA () EME(Fl - R REES) ERE
prices (such as copper and zinc alloy); (i) increase in labour costs; Foi () ATTACAIE AN R (iii) BRARFE M Al AN 1
and (iii) increase in costs for environmental protection measures. DOFTEL ©
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SLIDERS kA

Gross profit for sliders decreased by approximately 9.1% from W BRI FEF| R 2010 F £ 1,640,000 8 TR
HK$1.64 million in 2010 to HK$1.49 million in 2011. Gross profit 479.1% Z=20114F#)1,490,000/8 7L - Z—7F
margin, on the other hand, increased from approximately 29.4% to M EFEBAL29.4% EHE306%  £2
30.6%, which was primarily due to the introduction of measures AR AF S| AB R D HREE ©

to reduce scrapping.
PREMIUM ITEMS =3

Gross profit for premium items increased by approximately 85.7% & @ E FI #2010 #9 490,000 7% 7T 38 10 49
from HK$0.49 million in 2010 to HK$0.91 million in 2011. Gross 85.7% £20114 #910,000/8 7T  F F| =X

profit margin increased from approximately 16.0% to 24.5%, F4916.0% EHZE245%  EZENAEE
which was primarily attributable to stronger demand for premium mEEFATMIGHRE  H8 RIS KA
items by the branded customers of the Group for their marketing B o

puUrposes.
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OTHERS

Gross profit for other items decreased by approximately 81.2%
from HK$2.13 million in 2010 to HK$0.40 million in 2011. Gross
profit margin decreased from approximately 27.4% to 5.7%,

which was because the portion of sales of scrap materials to third

parties as a percentage over total sales of the “others” category
increased, and the gross margin for such sales is significantly
lower among the products within the “others” category.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs mainly represent (i) staff costs relating to sales

and marketing personnel; (ii) transportation costs for delivery

of the Group's products to customers; and (iii) advertising and

promotion expenses. In 2011, the Group's distribution costs

amounted to approximately HK$12.79 million (2010: HK$9.57

million), accounting for approximately 6.7% of the Group's

turnover (2010: 4.8%). The increase in distribution costs was

mainly due to (i) increase in salaries of sales staff; (ii) increase
in commission expenses in order to expand the Group’s market
share; and (iii) the expenses incurred for the Group's participations
in overseas sales exhibitions.

o fis
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) salary and
welfare expenses for management and administrative personnel;
(ii) depreciation and amortisation; (iii) auditors’ remuneration;
(iv) other administrative expenses including professional fees;
and (v) research and development expenses. In 2011, the
Group’s administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$31.39 million (2010: HK$32.89 million), which accounted for
approximately 16.5% of the Group’s turnover (2010: 16.5%). The
decrease in administrative expenses was mainly due to the one-
off expenses incurred in 2010 in connection with the listing of the
Shares in January 2011, and the decrease in professional fees and
other expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs represent interest expenses on the Group's bank
borrowings, which were all settled during the year.

INCOME TAX

Income tax mainly represents the tax expenses incurred in relation

to the operations of the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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PROFITABILITY

In 2011, the Group's profit attributable to Shareholders amounted
to HK$20.42 million (2010: HK$30.07 million), representing a
decrease of 32.1% as compared to 2010. The decrease was due
to (i) the increase in prices of major raw materials (such as copper
and zinc alloy) over the year 2011; (i) increase in labor costs; (iii)
increase in sales tax and surcharges due to the cancellation of
some tax concession policies applicable to wholly-owned foreign
enterprises in China; and (iv) increase in costs for environmental
protection measures. Margin of profit attributable to Shareholders
for the year was 10.7% (2010: 15.1%), representing a decrease of

4.4 percentage points as compared to 2010.

During the year, the Group's return on equity was 6.7% (2010:
22.1%), representing a decrease of 15.4 percentage points
as compared to 2010. The Group's relatively lower return on
equity recorded was a result of a decrease in the Group's profit
attributable to Shareholders due to reasons mentioned above and
an increase in the Group’s equity as a result of the listing of the

Shares in January 2011.
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INVENTORIES

Inventories are one of the principal components of the
Group's current assets. The value of inventories accounted for
approximately 21.6% and 12.3% of the Group's total current
assets as at 31 December 2010 and 2011 respectively.

Inventories increased by approximately 19.3% from HK$19.28
million as at 31 December 2010 to HK$23.00 million as at 31
December 2011 due to the increase in zipper components
manufactured to be further used in future production.

The increase in average inventory turnover days from 54 days
in 2010 to 63 days in 2011 was primarily due to the increase in
zipper components manufactured to be further used in future
production.

The write-down on inventories for the year 2011 was HK$1.49
million (2010: HK$203,000) because of a decrease in the
estimated net realisable value of certain slow-moving inventories.

TRADE DEBTORS

The Group's policy in respect of allowance for doubtful debts for
2011 was the same as that in 2010. As at 31 December 2011,
the allowance for doubtful debts was HK$715,000 (31 December
2010: HK$106,000), accounting for 1.9% of the Group's total trade
debtors (2010: 0.2%).

The Group's trade debtors (net) decreased by around 16.7%
from approximately HK$43.30 million as at 31 December 2010
to HK$36.05 million as at 31 December 2011 mainly due to the
decrease in sales.
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The increase in average trade debtors turnover days from 62 days
in 2010 to 77 days in 2011 was primarily due to the weakened
demand in the apparel industry, which affected businesses of our

customers and in turn led to delayed payments by customers.

TRADE CREDITORS

The Group's trade creditors primarily relate to purchases of raw
materials from suppliers, with credit terms of 7 to 45 days from

trade creditors.

The Group's trade creditors increased by around 36.5% from
approximately HK$5.45 million as at 31 December 2010 to
HK$7.44 million as at 31 December 2011. The average trade
creditors turnover days increased from 36 days in 2010 to 38 days
in2011.
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OTHER PAYABLES I i B A K S

Other payables mainly represent (i) payroll and staff benefits HAERFIEEEE () TE RENBETEF

payable; (ii) accrued expenses for utilities; (iii) audit and (i)KEEFER (BT REXER (VA
professional fees; (iv) commission charges; (v) payables for taxes SBA (v EABIEERFTERIN) - K& (vi)iE
other than income tax; and (vi) transportation costs. The balance AR o M EMREESGRDN491%E

of other payables decreased by approximately 49.1% to HK$12.73 2011412 A31 H #912,730,000/%8 7t (2010
million as at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$24.99 million) because £ 24,990,000 7T) Jh BB A 2 L FTE
the expenses incurred as a result of the listing of the Shares had EREERZE R 2011 F)5E -

been settled in 2011.

AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED PARTIES JEE A R B 7 Kk B
There was no amount due to related parties as at 31 December R 20114 12 A 31 B I 2 & (B8 5 30E -
2011.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following table is a summary of cash flow data for the two

years ended 31 December 2011:

L B e B Y A R O

TRAHZ2011F12A31 BIEMEFER
ReEnEERHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBLFE

2011 2010

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEBT

Net cash generated from operating activities KRBTSR F 5 32.43 2411
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFARE R (85.56) (6.97)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities REEEENFTS,(FTH)
REFE 111.78 (25.66)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and Re RBLZEMEM

cash equivalents CRi) F58 58.65 (8.52)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January ®1A1TERe RREEEY 15.58 23.49
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNIE DE R F R 52 2.70 0.61
Cash and cash equivalents M12A31BNRE

at 31 December kREEEY 76.93 15.58

The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities for the year
2011 amounted to HK$32.43 million (2010: HK$24.11 million).
As at 31 December 2011, cash and cash equivalents amounted
to HK$76.93 million, representing a net increase of HK$61.35
million as compared with the position as at 31 December 2010.
The increase was mainly due to the proceeds received from the
issuance of Shares in the Company’s initial public offering in
January 2011.

REER201NFEETHRESRANFER
32,430,000 7T.(20104F : 24,110,000/87T) °
R2011F12A318 REKBLZEMA
76,930,000 7T + 87X 201056F 12 A31HZ
AL D0SF 2E 61,350,0008 7T © ZIEMERE
ARARAER2011F1 ABRAREERET
B&A7 TS SRIEFTER
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As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no short-term bank loans, R2011412 A31 8 » NEBE I EEERT
compared to approximately HK$28.21 million as at 31 December B R2010F 12 A31 HEHRITERA
2010. 4928,210,000/8 7T °

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had unutilised bank facilities R20115F12 A318 @ NEBKREARTREE
amounting to HK$103.61 million. During the year 2011, the Group & #9103,610,0008 7T © 7220114 - AN&EE

did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risks. The gearing ratio, W R E R EEg o EARBELEE(HR
which was calculated by dividing total bank borrowings by total TEREER AR BETE M) 52010
equity, decreased from approximately 20.8% as at 31 December F12A31H%20.8% NEE2011412 A31
2010 to 0% as at 31 December 2011. HE0%
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NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current assets
of approximately HK$164.39 million. The key components of
current assets as at 31 December 2011 included inventories
of approximately HK$23.00 million, trade and other receivables
of approximately HK$40.79 million, deposits with banks of
approximately HK$43.55 million and cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$76.93 million. The key components of current
liabilities included trade and other payables of approximately
HK$20.17 million.

The net current assets increased from HK$27.86 million as at 31
December 2010 to HK$164.39 million as at 31 December 2011
primarily due to (i) the increase in cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$61.35 million as a result of the Company’s initial
public offering in January 2011; (ii) the increase in deposits with
banks of approximately HK$43.55 million; and (iii) the decrease in
bank loans of approximately HK$28.21 million.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, buildings with net book value of
HK$30.59 million (31 December 2010: HK$30.61 million) and
lease prepayments with net book value of HK$4.40 million (31
December 2010: HK$4.28 million) of the Group were pledged to
secure certain unutilised bank facilities of the Group.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments mainly represent the Group’s commitments
in relation to the acquisition of the land use right on a piece of
land in Jingmen, Hubei, PRC. The capital commitments as at
31 December 2010 and 2011 not provided for in the financial
statements were HK$2.01 million and HK$11.62 million

respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Individual companies within the Group have limited foreign
currency risk as most of the transactions are denominated in the
same currency as the functional currency of the operations in
which they relate. The Group did not hedge its exposure to risks

arising from fluctuations in exchange rates during the year 2011.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 739 full-time employees
(31 December 2010: 923 full-time employees). The Group reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees annually according
to the relevant market practice and individual performance of
the employees. Save for the social insurance in China and the
mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has
not set aside or accrued any amount of money to provide for
retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs
incurred in the year 2011 were approximately HK$51.14 million
(2010: HK$41.01 million).

USE OF NET PROCEEDS RECEIVED FROM
THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

In January 2011, net proceeds received from the initial public
offering, including the exercise of the over-allotment option and
after deducting related expenses, were approximately HK$130
million. Such net proceeds were deposited at the Group’s bank
account and have thus far been used in the manner consistent
with that mentioned in the section headed “Future plans and

proposed use of proceeds” of the Prospectus.
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ACQUISITION OF LAND USE RIGHT IN THE WRC I o % v R v - A )
PRC

On 22 December 2011, KEE (Jingmen) Garment Accessories R2011512 4228 S ERNE2ENE
Limited (5% (FIP9) lREBHBRAF]), a wholly-owned AEIFS (FIF) RERFER QBRI FIZ
subsidiary of KEE Guangdong, successfully bid for the acquisition WM AP BRI AP I ERERE —BL
of the land use right of a piece of land in Jingmen Economic M) T R - SR Z TR 2 EERK
Development Zone, Jingmen, Hubei Province, PRC. The EBAAEEZEFPHRERBEN - ZBE
production plant to be constructed on this land will provide TERTR 2013 FHRAEE ©

accessories for apparel to our customers. The plant is expected to

start production in year 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
applied the principles as set out in the CG Code. In the opinion of
the Board, the Company has complied with all the code provisions
and certain recommended best practices as set out in the CG
Code throughout the period from 12 January 2011 (the Date of
Listing) to 31 December 2011 (the “CG Period").

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review such practices from time to time to ensure that they
comply with the CG Code and align with the latest developments.
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THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which currently
comprises seven members, consisting of three executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Board assumes responsibility for
leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company's affairs. All Directors take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board met six times during the CG Period for reviewing
and approving the financial and operating performance, and
considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company. Details of the attendance records are set out below:

Executive Directors Attendance
Mr. Xu Xipeng 6/6

Mr. Xu Xinan 6/6

Mr. Yang Shaolin 5/6
Non-executive Director

Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert 4/6
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Bin 5/6

Mr. Kong Hing Ki 5/6

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 5/6

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company. The Board
includes a balanced composition of executive and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) so that
there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can

effectively exercise independent judgement.
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The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information” on
page 2 and the independent non-executive Directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed

under "Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 50 to 56.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

There are two key aspects of the management of the Company
— the management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of the Company's business. There is a clear division of
responsibilities at the Company’s Board level to ensure a balance
of power and authority so that power is not concentrated in any
one individual.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Xu Xipeng, who provides
leadership for the Board and is responsible for chairing the
meetings, managing the operations of the Board, and ensuring
that all major and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board
in a timely and constructive manner. The chief executive officer
of the Group is Mr. Xu Xinan, who is responsible for running the
Company’s businesses and implementing the Group's strategic
plans and business goals.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Directors are required to keep abreast of their responsibilities as a
director of the Company and of the Company’s conduct, business
activities and development. Given the essential unitary nature of
the Board, non-executive Director has the same duties of care
and skill and fiduciary duties as executive directors. Non-executive
Director brings a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experience and independent judgement to the Board. Functions of

non-executive Director include (but are not limited to):
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o participating in Board meetings to bring independent
judgement;

° taking the lead where potential conflict of interests may
arise;

° serving on Board committees if invited; and

° scrutinizing the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting

of performance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors. All
the independent non-executive Directors have the appropriate
qualifications in accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
as required under the Listing Rules. Independence of each of the
independent non-executive Directors has been assessed by the
Board and the Board considers that all independent non-executive

Directors are independent as required under the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a term of three years
and shall be subject to retirement by rotation once every three
years.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election

by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional

development for directors will be arranged where necessary.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that
such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied
with.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
to identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of
the Group. The internal auditor reviews and evaluates the control
process, monitors any risk factors on a regular basis, and reports
to the audit committee on any findings and measures to address
the variances and identified risks.

During the CG Period, the Board, through the audit committee,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company. The review covered the financial
reporting and compliance procedures of the Group. The Board
also reviewed the qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 73 and 74.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors, KPMG,
is shown in note 5(c) of the “Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements” on page 120.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’'s website and are

available to Shareholders upon request.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The roles and functions of the audit committee include the

following:

° to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor
or external auditors before submission to the Board;

o to review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditors; and

° to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.
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The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Bin (Chairman), Mr. Kong Hing Ki
and Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy, who possess the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. None of the members of the audit
committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors. The audit committee has separate and independent
access to the advice and services of the senior management of
the Company, and is able to seek independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense upon reasonable request.

The audit committee held five meetings during the CG Period
and reviewed the Group’s annual results and report for the year
ended 31 December 2011, the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the report of internal auditor from the management
on the Company’s internal control and risk management review
and processes, and the re-appointment of the external auditors,
subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Details of the attendance records of the audit committee
members are set out below:

Member Attendance
Mr. Lin Bin 5/5
Mr. Kong Hing Ki 5/5
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 4/5
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The roles and functions of the remuneration committee include
the following:

° making recommendations on and approving the
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration
packages of the executive directors and the senior
management;

° establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration; and

o determining annual remuneration packages by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well
as market practice and conditions.

During the CG Period, the remuneration committee comprises
three members, namely, Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman), Mr. Lin
Bin and Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy, the majority of which are
independent non-executive Directors. Details of the attendance

records of the remuneration committee members are set out

below:

Member Attendance
Mr. Xu Xipeng 1Al

Mr. Lin Bin 11

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 1Al
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The roles and functions of the nomination committee include the
following:

° reviewing the Board structure;

o monitoring the nomination and appointment and succession
planning of Directors; and

o assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

During the CG Period, the nomination committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Xu Xinan (Chairman), Mr. Lin Bin and Mr.
Kong Hing Ki, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors. Details of the attendance records of the nomination
committee members are set out below:

Member Attendance
Mr. Xu Xinan A
Mr. Lin Bin 11
Mr. Kong Hing Ki A

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE ON
SHARE DEALINGS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the CG
Period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the Shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees are

available to answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2011 Annual General Meeting (“AGM") was held on 27 May
2011. The notice of AGM was sent to shareholders at least 20

clear business days before the AGM.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.kee.com.cn, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are posted.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association and
poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange after each Shareholder meeting.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of seven
Directors, including three executive Directors, one non-executive

Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Xipeng (5F$38), aged 46, is an executive Director,
chairman of the Board, one of the founders of the Group and
an elder brother of Mr. Xu Xinan. Mr. Xu is responsible for the
formulation of development strategies, overseeing of the overall
business of the Group and the operation of the Board. Mr. Xu
has over 19 years of experience in the zipper industry, especially
the overall management and production supervision. He was

appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2010.
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Mr. Xu Xinan (5F4373), aged 41, is an executive Director, the
chief executive officer, one of the founders of the Group and
the younger brother of Mr. Xu Xipeng. Mr. Xu is responsible for
the implementation of the decisions of the Board and the overall
guidance and supervision of our business. Mr. Xu has over 19
years of experience in the zipper industry, especially the overall
management, and sales and marketing. He was appointed as an
executive Director on 6 July 2010.

Mr. Yang Shaolin (4#)*, aged 38, is an executive Director,
the chief financial officer and one of the joint company secretaries.
He is responsible for the overall financial planning of the Group,
and managing the finance and accounting department and the
information technology department. Mr. Yang joined the Group in
December 2008 and has over 14 years' experience in corporate
management and financial management. Mr. Yang worked
as an accountant and later as a finance manager in various
manufacturing enterprises (including EM&RITEEBR AR
(Guangzhou KYH Metal Co., Ltd.) for over two and a half years)
prior to joining the Group. He obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Economics majoring in accounting from 1t &R (Beijing
Wuzi University) in 1997. Mr. Yang is also a member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a registered
tax agent in the PRC. He was appointed as an executive Director
on 6 July 2010.

* Mr. Yang was re-designated to be the non-executive Director and resigned as

the chief financial officer and joint company secretary of the Company on 1
April 2012.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FEPfTER

Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert (F87%3#)%, aged 60, was appointed BENTES - 605% - R2010F 7 A6 HEZL
as a non-executive Director on 6 July 2010. Mr. Chow joined the EAEIEWITES - ALENR 2005 FINALRSE
Group in 2005 and has advised the Group on business strategy E R AN SR E A AR ES B BS S EE
and internal controls. Mr. Chow has over 20 years' experience ER - AAARCEETETABEA®20FL
in corporate management and holds a Bachelor Degree of B RBENEAZRSNEAEHEELE
Commerce from McMaster University in Canada. Mr. Chow is also il AENANEREMEESHAMAS
a member of The Society of Management Accountants of Canada (5 CMA Canada) €@ 8 » FLAEEMN
(also known as CMA Canada). Mr. Chow's work experience prior ARRARIRIR TIELERBIE

to joining the Company includes:

e  from 1988 to 1991, as the regional finance director of Frank e 1988F ZE1991F  EEBAME™

Small & Associates Limited, an Australian market research %2 A7 Frank Small & Associates
company; Limited &Y [& i3 B 5 4855

e  from 1992 to 1996, as chief operating officer and director e 1992 F19964F - EEEEMIGHE

and one of the founders of Asia Market Intelligence Limited, 7~ A] Asia Market Intelligence Limited
a market research company in Hong Kong; and WEERE  BEFEREIWAZ— R

e from 1999 until the date of this annual report, as the o  1999FEARFHAH  EERELE

managing director, the founder and the sole shareholder LEBEEBEMMBBATNEBAEEGR
of Inetol Cyber Limited (JJBEHEER A F]) of Hong Kong, NEIMEEREE - Bl A RME—R
a company engaged in manufacturing and trading of e
headwear.

# Mr. Chow was re-designated to be an executive Director on 1 April 2012. # BEER2012F4 A1 BATARITES -
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Bin (#3&), aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 August 2010. Mr. Lin graduated
from T A& R E (Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics)
in 1984 with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics majoring in
industrial accounting. Mr. Lin obtained his Doctorate Degree
in Economics (Accountancy) from EFIAE: (the University of
Xiamen) in 1997. Mr. Lin has served in various positions as tutor,
lecturer and associate professor in the Faculty of Economics and
Management in ZERBAZ (East China Jiaotong University).
Currently, Mr. Lin is a professor and a director of the department
GEHETHEEHEFR DO (the
Education Centre of Master of Professional Accounting) of F1LIZK

of accountancy and also a director of

B (Sun Yat-Sen University). His roles in public services include:

e the vice chairman of ERE NEPEE#E (the Association of
Internal Audit of Guangdong Province);

e the vice chairman of ERE B2 e
Guangdong Province);

(the Audit Society of

e acommittee member of FREHEGEHHEEXZES
(the Committee of Accounting Education of the Accounting
Society of China); and

e a member of FEARKEMBE IS EANIITHIZEL S
S & HEZRA (the Consultation Team for Enterprise Internal
Control Standards of the Ministry of Finance of the PRC).
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Mr. Lin also acts as an independent non-executive director of:

e EMNBEEBRE#ESKRMBERAT (Guangzhou Baiyun
International Airport Company Limited), a company whose

shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange;

o FIMEMRERMERAT (Shenzhen Aisidi Company
Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange; and

o  RRFLGBKMEMAT (Auhui SaunaKing Company
Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kong Hing Ki (CT#3) aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 November 2010. He
has over 11 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and finance,
gained from international accountancy and commercial firms.
Currently, he is a financial controller of a company whose ultimate
holding company is listed on the main board of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and is an independent non-
executive director and the audit committee chairman of Hing
Lee (HK) Holdings Limited (stock code: 396), a company whose
shares are listed on the Main Board, and also an independent
non-executive director of RENHENG Enterprise Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8012), a company whose shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
Mr. Kong obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Commerce from
The Australian National University and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Deakin University, which is a joint
program of Deakin University and CPA Australia conducted in
Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants and a member of CPA Australia.
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Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (FEfB%4), aged 48, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 10 August 2010. Mr.
Tam graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a Professional Diploma in Accountancy in 1986 and is a fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
21 years' experience in accounting, auditing and finance. He is
currently president of Essentack Limited, a corporate strategy
and management advisory company. He is also an independent
non-executive director and the audit committee chairman of Kith
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1201), a company whose shares are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and also an independent
non-executive director and the nomination committee chairman
of Renheng Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code: 8012), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management are responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

Mr. Hsieh Chin Fong (#{E%), aged 67, is the chief technical
officer responsible for overseeing various aspects of product
design, and research and development departments. He has
many years of experience in the zipper industry including zipper
production and the development of zipper production machinery.
Prior to joining the Group in November 2004, Mr. Hsieh had

worked for several zipper manufacturers in Taiwan. Mr. Hsieh
acted as a senior specialist in 72 AR AR5 AR A A (Max Zipper
Co., Ltd) from 1987 to 1993 and acted as a general manager in &
FHEH AR AR (Unitech Zipper & Machinery Co. Ltd) from
1992 to 2004.
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Ms. Mo Qiuye (EfZ), aged 33, was appointed as senior
sales manager in December 2009. She is responsible for the
management of the Group’s China sales and customer service.
Ms. Mo joined the Group in March 1999 as a sales assistant. In
2007, she was appointed as a sales manager. Ms. Mo has more
than 12 years' experience in the sale of zippers and garment
accessories and has an in-depth knowledge in the apparel

business.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Yang Shaolin (£52#)*, aged 38, an executive Director
and our chief financial officer, was appointed as a joint company
secretary of the Company on 25 November 2010. For details of
his biography, please refer to the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management — Executive Directors”.

Ms. Li Yan Wing, Rita (Z075), aged 46, was appointed as
a joint company secretary of the Company on 25 November
2010. Ms. Li is a director of the corporate services division of
Tricor Services Limited and an associate of both The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She has over 22 years'
experience in corporate advisory services. Prior to joining Tricor
Services Limited, Ms. Li served as a senior manager of the
company secretarial department of Tengis Limited. Ms. Li has
provided various secretarial and corporate services to many listed

companies.

* Mr. Yang was re-designated to be an non-executive Director and resigned
as the chief financial officer and joint company secretary of the Company on
1 April 2012.
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Report of the Directors
EEERESE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are design, manufacture and sale of
finished zippers in China. The Group’'s customers for zippers are
OEMs who manufacture apparel products for (i) apparel brands in
China; and (ii) some well known international apparel labels.

The Group also supplies sliders, components of zippers (including
continuous zipper chains and stops) and moulds to other zipper
manufacturers and designs and supplies premium items such
as glasses, backpacks and watches exclusively to apparel brand
owners to meet the promotional needs for their products.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in the “Consolidated Income Statement” on page 75

of this annual report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.25 cents per Share (2010: nil) in respect of the year 2011 to
the Shareholders.

Upon approval at the annual general meeting on 25 May 2012,
the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about Monday, 18
June 2012 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Friday, 1 June 2012.
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RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$138.26 million (2010: nil). Details of movements
in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major customers

and suppliers respectively in the financial year were as follows:

i

MN2011F12A318 - XARADE#HESR
138,260,000 7T (20104F « &) - REBEF R
RENEBFBEHRGRE M BERENEREE
HEBERNA -

ERE P R

AEERMRFREEDMNAERRF REFE
EELMHEE MIRBENT ¢

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLFE

2011 2010

% of total % of total

turnover turnover

HABE RN (HREETEN

Ehalnd EFalsd

The largest customer BARF 6.4 6.2
Five largest customers AAREF 17.4 17.0
% of total % of total

purchase purchase

hAREY (heEEY

B EFalsd

The largest supplier BAMER 26.1 22.6
Five largest suppliers AARHER 70.4 70.7

All of the above five largest suppliers of the Group are independent
third parties. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholder holding more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has any interest in

any of the Group's five largest suppliers as disclosed above.
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BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no short-term bank loans
(2010: HK$28.21 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ORDINARY SHARES

Details of movements in ordinary shares of the Company during
the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity
to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 to 9 of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during
the period from 12 January 2011, being the date of listing of the
Shares, to 31 December 2011.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Xinan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yang Shaolin

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Bin

Mr. Kong Hing Ki

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy

In accordance with articles 87(1) and (2) of the Company'’s articles
of association, Mr. Xu Xipeng, Mr. Xu Xinan and Mr. Yang Shaolin
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 50 to 56 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at the end of
the year or any time during the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company of his/her compliance with the non-competition
undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company entered into on 30
December 2010 (details are disclosed in the Prospectus under the
section headed “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders”).
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the deed of non-competition have been complied with by the

Controlling Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business, which competes or competed or is
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business at any time during the year ended 31 December
2011 and up to and including the date of this annual report.

PENSION SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly
basis for its employees. The Group has no further obligation for
payment of post-retirement benefits to employees beyond the
aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme") in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group and are
under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and
its employees are required to contribute 5% of the employees’
monthly salaries. The mandatory contributions required to be
made respectively by the Group and an employee are each capped
at HK$1,000 per month. Members are entitled to 100% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to
the MPF Scheme but all benefits derived from the mandatory
contributions must be preserved until an employee reaches the
retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2011.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the Directors in the
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, are as follows:
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LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES BB Z 5553

Director Nature of Interest Number of Shares Percentage
£ s (e ERald
Mr. Xu Xipeng #F&5 M5 50 £ Corporate A A 300,000,000 72.29%
Mr. Xu Xinan #F$5 5 504 Corporate A 7] 300,000,000 72.29%
Mr. Yang Shaolin 15> #ksE 4 Corporate A A 2,120,000 0.51%
LoNG PoSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ASSOCIATED TR 1 1 2 e 0y B B By 2 T AT
CORPORATION

Director Name of Associated Corporation Percentage
£ HESEEEE B
Mr. Xu Xipeng #F 855 56 £ Nicco 49.75%
Mr. Xu Xinan #F 857 55 4 Nicco 49.75%
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert &3 Y 54 Nicco 0.50%

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors do not hold any short
positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives bR EX AT EEE SN 2011412 A31 8 ¢
or any of their associates had any interests or short positions in EE IETRABIBEZEMHEAL
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its MERAR A EEARBAR 2 &p - 8
associated corporations were recorded in the register required to AR REEZEFREREESLKBEEG

be kept under Section 352 of the SFO as at 31 December 2011. FEI2 KRR BEFEZ Bz E kR
PKE ©

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS 3 BB SR AS A v 2 B A B B
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OR 2R R
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, the register of substantial Shareholders R2011 512 A31 8 REFHLHEKD
maintained under section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company FIBHKHFEZEEZREEZMET - A2
had been notified of the following substantial Shareholders’ FAEAg TIHEERR 2BERRABEERARA
interests and short positions, representing 5% or more of the Al EEITIRAL% A £ -

Company’s issued share capital:

Name Number of Shares Percentage
=718 R Bkt
Nicco 300,000,000 72.29%
Mr. Xu Xipeng #F #5154 (Note fif=E 1) 300,000,000 72.29%
Mr. Xu Xinan &F# # 5t 4 (Note Fif3E 2) 300,000,000 72.29%
Ms. Ke Saixia #2822+ (Note izt 1) 300,000,000 72.29%
Ms. Lu Jiehong 24T 22 4= (Note Fig7¥ 2) 300,000,000 72.29%
Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited 24,948,000 6.01%
Ms. Liu Yang 2R %+ (Note izt 3) 24,948,000 6.01%
Notes: B3
1. As Nicco is beneficially owned as to 49.75% by Mr. Xu Xipeng, Mr. Xu Xipeng 1. 7 Nicco T iME L A BEmMEH 49.75% * &
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Nicco by virtue of Part XV RIEFES KB GEIE XV ED - FTiM5 %k £ AR
of the SFO. Ms. Ke Saixia, being Mr. Xu Xipeng's spouse, is deemed to be B NiccoFBMRMNPHEED - WEEL
interested in the shares held by Nicco under Part XV of the SFO. TERFTHES L AN BRIE S R BAEGH
BXV EBHEAE B Nicco TR R B 1
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2. As Nicco is beneficially owned as to 49.75% by Mr. Xu Xinan, Mr. Xu Xinan
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Nicco by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO. Ms. Lu Jiehong, being Mr. Xu Xinan's spouse, is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Nicco under Part XV of the SFO.

3. These shares are owned by Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited, which is 100%
beneficially owned by Ms. Liu Yang.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest of
a short position in the shares and underlying shares or debentures
of the Company that was required to be recorded under Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Both Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan are executive Directors
and Controlling Shareholders and therefore are connected
persons of the Company. Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan (as
lessors) and KEE Guangdong, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (as lessee), entered into a lease agreement (the
“Lease Agreement”) on 12 August 2010 pursuant to which
Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan have agreed to lease to KEE
Guangdong the production base in Foshan City of Guangdong
Province at a monthly rental of RMB260,000 payable within the
first 10 working days of each month for an initial term of three
years commencing on 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012. An
independent property valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, advised
that the monthly rental of RMB260,000 is fair and reasonable with
reference to the market rate. For each of the three years ending 31
December 2012, the annual rental paid and payable by the Group
(the “"Annual Cap"”) under the Lease Agreement was and will be
as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2010 &£ 2010F12 A31 BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2011 #Z= 2011412 A31 BIEFE
Year ending 31 December 2012 #Z 2012412 A31 BILFE

"
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2. B Nicco RFFiAm A £ B R EH 49.75%
RIEESREEFIEXVE - FFFEELRS
B NiccoFAMMRMPHA R - BRI
TR L ENRBIREEF R BEEM
FEXV IR B Nicco AT RIRR D i 5 1

oo

3. L% A1) B Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited
BH - FARBERLTERZEF100% °

B EXETEEEN  BETAALTREAAF
2B RABER DS EEETREIREES
T EREIEHIEE XV 285 336 1§ B Fro 2 B &R

HRHES o

FTEANE S A RETIAME L A AITE RITRAR
FOMRARARREEAL - 7201048
A128 - B EERTHETE(EAD
BA)ERRARNEEMBARMSER (1E
REBAN)FIVAERZ(HERRE]) - B
bt BB ERTHEAEREUNTAA
R#260,000t A(REAEHEIERR
X MASERLEEREHB LT EESR
- 201061 A1 AR ZE2012F12 A 31
Hit9Z AEI=F - B (GEME ETEE
MAERARES - A AR 260,000 T
2EMSBEREBEATAE - 8E2012F12A4
JMMBE=AFESF  ~EBREHEHH
EXHREIMNNFER(FELR] BREE
=3 N

RMB HK$
ARE BT
3,120,000 3,761,472
3,120,000 3,761,472
3,120,000 3,761,472
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Given the annual rental amount payable by KEE Guangdong, the
Lease Agreement, which constitutes a continuing connected
transaction under Rule 14A.34, falls within the ambit of Rule
14A.35 of the Listing Rules and is only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47
of the Listing Rules, the annual review requirements set out in
Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the Listing Rules and the requirements
set out in Rules 14A.35(1) and 14A.35(2) of the Listing Rules.
A waiver from the announcement requirements set out in Rule
14A.47 of the Listing Rules was granted by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange since the details of the Lease Agreement have been
disclosed in the Prospectus under the section headed “Connected
Transaction”.

The Company has complied with the relevant requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, including the Annual
Cap, and will re-comply with the relevant rules of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules (including independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements) if the waiver from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
expires or the Annual Cap is exceeded, or when the Lease
Agreement expires or is renewed or when there is a material
change to the terms of the Lease Agreement.

ANNUAL REVIEW

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i)~ on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the Lease Agreement governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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TRANE 14A 3 ERHEFASE - EEEST L
TRAIZE14A 45 14A ATIEFTEN R R B2 22
MIRE « ETRAIE14A 3716 14A 4015FT
HEFEEEZRTE AR EMAEAIZE14A.35(1) (&
KE1AASBEAERTE - HREERZEZ
HEERBRER [BEXS] —8RNEE -
ERBMIME TR HeBF EMARAE
14A.47 GRPTE R ARTE ©

HWEABIPMARTORLEHAKRFRE LR
Wi - B E BRI HREERREE
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KPMG, the auditors of the Company, was engaged to report on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and reported their findings to the Board that the
transactions:

(i) have been approved by the Board;

(i)  have been entered into in accordance with the Lease
Agreement during the year; and

(i) have not exceeded the Annual Caps.

OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, the
related-party transactions set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements also include transactions which did not
constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of other related-party transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2011, which did not constitute connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are set out in notes 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’'s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the written resolutions
of the sole Shareholder of the Company passed on 14 December
2010, pursuant to which the Board may, at its absolute discretion
and on such terms as it may think fit, grants options to any
employee(s) (whether full time or part time including any Director)
of any member of the Group at the exercise price for such number

of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the

"
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Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Board to grant options to selected employee(s)
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 40,000,000 Shares which represents
approximately 9.6% of the Shares in issue on the date of this
report. The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in
the offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum

holding period before an option is exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-
one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable to our Company on acceptance of the offer for the
grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price is to be determined by the Board provided always
that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the grant of the option, which
must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the exercise price shall in no event
be less than the nominal amount of one Share.
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During the year ended 31 December 2011, 24,880,000 share REZE201MF12A3THLEFE - £FEH
options were granted. Details of the share options granted under 24,880,000 X #E A - B BB RIE AR ERT £
the Share Option Scheme are as follows: R H AR S EEIIn T

As at 31 December 2011, the executive Directors, non-executive M201MF12A31H - REEHTES - I
Directors and employees of the Group have the following interests BITEZREERBEERESSHE U TE

under the Share Option Scheme. = o
Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Offered
Date of Exercise  at1.12011 Duringthe Duringthe During at31.12.2011 SRERE
Director  Offer Price R20115E Year Year the Year R2011%E Exercise Period HEEHAIES
BEpE BERH TRE  1A1RER  FRRE TRTR ERAN 12B31R&R L W E
Yang Shaolin  27.05.2011 1.39 - 318,000 - - 318,000  From the day after 125
B the 2011 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
HEONFEREER
EERRN16EEE
RENEEA
27.05.2011 1.39 - 318,000 - - 318,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
B01FEREER
ERAE0165FE

FENEEH
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Closing Price of

the Securities

Immediately

before the Date

on Which the

Options were

Offered

SEERE

Exercise Period HEEZHAIES
[ Gl

Granted  Exercised
During the  During the

Outstanding
at 1.1.2011

R2011E
18184%

Lapsed Outstanding
During at 31.12.2011

Year Year the Year R0
ERRl  AROR AN 12831R%F

424,000 - -

Exercise
Offer Price
BERH 1E

27.05.2011 1.39 -

Date of

Director

BEHE

424,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2013 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
M201BFEEREED
LERRNI6EEE
£ENEER

27.05.2011 1.39 - 424,000 - - 424,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2014 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
B0 FEREER
EERENI6EER
#ENEER

27.05.2011 139 - 636,000 - - 636,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2015 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
B0 FEREER
EEAR0165EE
#ENLER

Employeesin 27.05.2011
aggregate

ZitEE
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- 978,000 2,436,000

From the day after
the 2011 annual
results being
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the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
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Closing Price of

the Securities

Immediately

before the Date

on Which the

Options were

Employees Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Offered
in Date of Exercise  at1.12011 Duringthe Duringthe During at31.12.2011 SiRRRE
aggregate  Offer Price R201E Year Year the Year R201E Exercise Period HEEHAIHES
ZitEE  BERH RE  1A1R&EF  ERRE TRTE ERAN 12B31RER TS e

27.05.2011 1.39 - 3,414,000 - 978,000 2,436,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results
being announced
m012FEEEE
AEEAZ0165F
FEEENEER

27.05.2011 1.39 - 4,552,000 - 1,304,000 3,248,000  From the day after 125
the 2013 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
H013FFEEER
EERENI6EER
#ENEER

27.05.2011 1.39 - 4,552,000 - 1,304,000 3,248,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2014 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
H0UFFERER
LERENI6FFE

FENEEH

27.05.2011 139 - 6,828,000 - 1,956,000 4,872,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2015 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
B0 FFERER
EERENI6EFE
RENEEA
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT A ELY  E

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company RAREAE  BEARARZARERNUK
and to the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, BEEMA - 82011F1 128G £
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not less Ko ARE—EH#HERF EHRBIPAETAA DR

than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules 25% BEITRH 2 ARFERE -
since the listing of the Shares on 12 January 2011.

AUDITOR % e il

KPMG will retire as auditors of the Company and, being eligible, EEHEHMEFMBEERRAZZE

offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re- Bl METFE BRI EEREMR - BIEES
appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company will be proposed BTN EIS T AR R R BEN 2 R E R
at the annual general meeting. RERAFRE LIEE -

By order of the Board AEEGMD

Xu Xipeng EY

Chairman Frea s

Hong Kong, 16 March 2012 EH - 2012%3 16 H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A RS

eprac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
KEE Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of KEE
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 75 to 178, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2011, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

"
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement For the year ended 31 December 2011
melmE B 011 3 13 A1 B (ABAI)
2011 2010
Note $'000 $'000
LiEss T T7T
Turnover E 3G 3 190,433 199,224
Cost of sales SHEK A (127,888) (118,765)
Gross profit EF| 62,545 80,459
Other revenue H Atz 4 7,204 1,093
Other net (loss)/income Hith (E518), B F58 (373) 290
Distribution costs S EEBAR (12,788) (9,570)
Administrative expenses TE RS (31,389) (32,885)
Profit from operations FEE—pinw 25,199 39,387
Finance costs BB RA 5(a) (261) (1,614)
Profit before taxation R A A 5 24,938 37,773
Income tax PS5t 6 (4,516) (7,000)
Profit for the year FR@A 20,422 30,773
Attributable to: AT B IEE -
Equity shareholders of AN
the Company 20,422 30,071
Non-controlling interests IR = 702
Profit for the year FRER 20,422 30,773
Basic and diluted earnings BREAREEER (Bx)
per share ($) 10 0.05 0.10
The notes on pages 84 to 178 form part of these financial F8AE 178 H MM A KRz 2 — 0
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of Do BAFARMNFPENARAERKRERZ
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in ARS - HEFIEEMRMIEE23 -
note 23.
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ComprehenSive Income For the year ended 31 December 2011
FE2ERER B s0r1 3 13 A1 B (BRI
2011 2010
Note $'000 $'000
LiEss T T7T
Profit for the year FRER 20,422 30,773
Other comprehensive income FREMEEEA
for the year
Exchange differences on BREMB QRN BRE
translation of financial RFEE R BOIE 2 78
statements of subsidiaries 12,736 4,597
Total comprehensive income FAEEBR AL
for the year 33,158 35,370
Attributable to: LT RIEE -
Equity shareholders of AN
the Company 33,158 34,616
Non-controlling interests AR = 754
Total comprehensive income FARAZHEBALEE
for the year 33,158 35,370
The notes on pages 84 to 178 form part of these financial FBAE 78 B 2 WM AN 15k 2 — &b
statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position At 31 December 2011
e MBRRR oot 212 A1 B (AR
2011 2010
Note $'000 $'000
LiEss Fr Tt
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets BElE&E 12
— Property, plant and equipment —ZE - FE k& 107,540 98,139
- Lease prepayments —HEER 4,395 4,285
111,935 102,424
Intangible assets mEEE 13 7,463 4,511
Prepayments for fixed and EEREFEEDN
intangible assets SEN B 15 21,551 489
Deferred tax assets BIETHIA B E 18(b) 1,534 556
142,483 107,980
Current assets wEEE
Inventories FE 16 22,995 19,281
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& E At FEURIE 17 40,793 53,349
Current tax recoverable RNEART 4k Bl B 18 18(a) 2,297 1,215
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEYD 19 76,928 15,584
Deposits with banks RITE BATF X 19 43,549 -
186,562 89,429
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Financial Position

e BB R

At 31 December 2011
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
72011412 A 31 B (LUBTHIR)

78

2011 2010
Note $'000 $'000
liEss Fr Tt
Current liabilities nREBRE

Trade and other payables E 5 RHEMER FIR 20 20,172 30,445
Bank loans RITER - 28,205
Current tax payable BNERFEI B 1E 18(a) 2,004 2,920
22,176 61,570
Net current assets MENEEFE 164,386 27,859
Net assets BEEFE 306,869 135,839

Capital and reserves BEXR#E 23
Share capital &N 4,150 -
Reserves R 302,719 135,839
Total equity HERHEEE 306,869 135,839

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16

March 2012.

Xu Xipeng Xu Xinan BF EE

Director Director =rea s riam

The notes on pages 84 to 178 form part of these financial F8AFE 178 B 7 MM AN KRz 2 — 2D

statements.
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At 31 December 2011
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
72011412 A 31 B (LUBITHIR)

2011 2010
Note $'000 $'000
LiEss Fr Tt
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interest in a subsidiary NGIEVNGIPA: S 14 = -
Current assets wEEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FEU — PRI B R Rl 2 5RE 26(d) 143,174 -
Other receivables o FEUGRIE 17 270 6,495
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEFEY 403 -
143,847 6,495
Current liabilities wEEE
Amount due to a subsidiary e —FEI B AR 2 5kE 26(d) - 9,350
Other payables E A RIA 20 625 8,471
625 17,821
Net assets/(liabilities) gE(BE)FH 143,222 (11,326)
Capital and reserves BEAXRR#E 23
Share capital &N 4,150 -
Reserves i 139,072 (11,326)
Total equity B 143,222 (11,326)

BEEEMN2012453 A 16 BRETRRETIZE o

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16

March 2012.

Xu Xipeng Xu Xinan EF EFE

Director Director Bl BE I

The notes on pages 84 to 178 form part of these financial F8AE 78 B 2 WA 15k 2 — &b
statements. % o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 31 December 2011

%A*Eéﬁib '13):2 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
NN ==

HZE2011412 A31 BIEFE (UBTHIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

80

RAAERRERE
Non-
Share  Capital Statutory Exchange Retained controlling  Total
Share premium reserve reserve reserve earnings interests  equity
capital B ER AT EXR 0 KRB  Total EER  B&
Bx BE BB HE  RE 0 BN &%  BE 8%
Note ~ 000  $000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000
W fr fx fr T fx T fr  fr  Tn
At 1 January 2010 R2010E1818 1,000 - 10264 10459 13070 62,262 97,085 3414 100,469
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - 30071 3007 70030773
Other comprehensive income Efp2ENA - - - - 4545 - 45 5 4597
Total comprehensive income ERZENALS
fortheyear ToToTo.n  AMS300n  s4fle 7oA 3310
Aopropriation to AT G
statutory reserve - - - 3412 - (3412 - - -
Acquisition of FRALRERRR
non-controling interests AAWE T RER
by contribution from
the equity shareholder
of the Company - - 4168 - - - 4168 (4168 -
Reserve arising from ERMEEfRE
the reorganisation (1,000 - 1,000 - - - - - -
Disposal of subsiaries HENBAT - - - B 0% 2778 - - -
At 31 December 2010 R20105128317
and 1 January 2011 R2011%E1518 - - 15432 13044 15664 91699 135839 - 135839
Changes in equity for 2011: W1 FEREE:
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 0422 2042 - 040
Other comprehensive income Ep2ENA - - - - 127% - 127% - 127%
Total comprehensive income ERZEMAEE
fortheyer S 1 S L B - B8
Appropriation o statutory reserve AR Z AT EE - - - 2597 - 259 - - -
Issuance of shares by share offer  EBRHEEEARA 23 4150 138,096 - - - - 142246 - 14226
Dividends declared and paid DEREARE 3 - - - - - (6183 (5189) - (5189
Equity settled share-based NEREERNZANRS
transactions () - - 814 - - - 814 - 814
At 31 December 2011 RAME123318 4050 13096 16246 15641 28400 104335 306860 - 306869

The notes on pages 84 to 178 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31 December 2011
mERERER 2011 713 A 31 B (ABI)
2011 2010
Note $'000 $'000
LiEss Fr Tt
Operating activities R EE
Profit before taxation BRAATE A 24,938 37,773
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation and amortisation e 8y 5(c) 12,436 9,922
Impairment loss on doubtful debts  REEREEIE 5(c) 1,075 25
Write down of inventories T &R 16 1,487 203
Finance costs BB KA 5(a) 261 1,614
Interest income FLEUA 5(c) (1,869) (90)
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets ~ HERETEEMNEIEFE 5(c) 237 233
Equity-settled share-based AR B E D
payment expenses SANE5 5(b) 814 -
Foreign exchange loss SN fE5 18 4,469 1,554
43,848 51,234
Changes in working capital EEESEE
Increase in inventories FEIEM (5,201) (4,052)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 R E A EURIE
other receivables A, (E ) 5,869 (20,281)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and 2 5 R EAFERFRIE
other payables G4,/ m (4,571) 1,766
Decrease in long-term receivables REIEYGRIBER - 847
Cash generated from operations K& fr5HE L 39,945 29,5614
Income tax paid BATFEH 18(a) (7,519) (5,402)
Net cash generated from BE BTG
operating activities & F4E 32,426 24,112
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n —\éiﬁﬁﬁii

For the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE2011412 731 B IEFE (GUBTIIR)

2011 2010
Note $'000 $'000
i Fr Tt
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of BEWE BWERX
property, plant and equipment BYEOINEN (18,740) (19,923)
Payment for purchase of BEHEREN
lease prepayments EINEN (21,061) -
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - BEK&
plant and equipment RIS IRIA 149 2,950
Payment for purchase of BERTAEE
intangible assets EIREN 13 (3,331) (4,788)
Repayment of advances to RiE T (BB
related parties - 1,034
Interest received EFLE 968 90
Acquisition of a subsidiary, I BE — B A ]
net of cash acquired (MBREWEERS) = 8
Disposal of subsidiaries, HEHTE AR
net of cash disposed (MBREHERS) - 13,664
Increase in deposits with banks #R1T7E BRfF SRIE 0 (43,549) -
Net cash used in RETHIARESFE
investing activities (85,564) (6,965)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n EJi;iEELUWE;E%Ei

For the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE2011412 A31 BEFE (LUBTAIR)

2011 2010
Note $'000 $'000
liEss Fr 7T
Financing activities RERE
Proceeds from new bank loans FrERITE RS HIE - 27,557
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITERK (28,205) (24,112)
Repayment of advances BEBETBN
from related parties - (24,308)
Interest paid ERFE (261) (1,614)
Payment of share issuing cost A& 10 BT AN R (7,511) (3,193)
Proceeds from issuance of shares IR AP BTG RIA 23(d) 152,950 -
Dividends paid to equity shareholders J&{ F A2 7]
of the Company TR R AR B 23(b) (5,188) -
Net cash generated/(used) mEEERE(FTA)
in financing activities REFE 111,785 (25,670)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBELEY
and cash equivalents i, G ) B4 58,647 (8,523)
Cash and cash equivalents R1A1EMNERS
at 1 January FIREEEY 15,584 23,493
Effect of foreign exchange ERSENTE
rate changes 2,697 614
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31HNRSE
at 31 December RREZEY 76,928 15,584

The notes on pages 84 to 178 form part of these financial

statements.

FBAENT8EZ MR AM B RE 2 — &

o

P

83



84

KeE

20114E%R Annual Report

Notes

to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR BT RE

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2011 comprise KEE
Holdings Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“The Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).
A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEEHI - FIESBUATE)
1 BEGHHEE
(a) AHEY

HE2011F12A8318 EFE
iR e M mRBERSIERE
RAR([ARAR]) REMEBAR
(R I AER]) -

HEMBREBIZREE S
RERMZAAEREENER
SR ([BBFBREER])
ZOREBRRMBERNERN
(BEAMBHREEN) (BEE
PR ([FAEEA]) k2
B -EAERREFRANER
CRRHEPD Z BTN EMARE
BEAN - W EFBHRERNDERE
BMERZAARAR ([ BEH
AT s LT AR B E A RO
BRE AEBEMRAZEIES
SHEREIEREHIOTS o

BRI AGEM T ETHA
RGBT 2B EM B REER
BRE B AEE A RRH AR
T R R A A Rk AT R ER AT IR
Ao RAHBE R BE S A
MR IXGER Ll AR E A R
ZHETRBERT BRI B mE LR
AMERETRRES 2 ED
RRPE B IHE S o REMERN
MEHERME—A -



1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 6 July 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. Pursuant to a group reorganisation completed
on 25 November 2010 (the “Reorganisation”),
the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group. The Company
has not carried on any business since the date
of its incorporation save for the aforementioned
Reorganisation and application of listing.

The Reorganisation has been accounted for
in accordance with paragraph 5 of Accounting
Guideline 5, Merger accounting for common control
combinations, issued by the HKICPA, which requires
the use of a principle similar to that for a reverse
acquisition as set out in Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 3, Business combinations. The issue of
shares of the Company in exchange for the entire
interest in KEE International BVI Limited (“"KEE
International BVI”) and the issue of shares of KEE
International BVI in exchange for the entire interest
in KEE Zippers Corporation Limited (“KEE Zippers”)
resulted in the Company becoming the intermediate
holding company of KEE Zippers. The financial
statements have been prepared as a continuation
of KEE Zippers and the assets and liabilities of KEE
Zippers are recognised and measured at their historical

carrying values prior to the Reorganisation.

1

"
%{Zf%’@\ JUST FOR YOU

HEAEHBOR (F)

(b)

YU 0 ) B
ARAEIR 20104 7 A 6 BRI
SRS NANEFE2F (1961 F5
IFVER - LhRE RIER]) ERE
HEEAMRIA—RERRER
SEERF - RIEMR20105F11 A
25BERMEBEEA(EHR]
RABKAREERFETED
AIMER AR o Br L E AR
BLEmAN s ARF B HFEMA L
B HA DA SR i R B R (] 2755 o

BHERBEESSTMASERS
WERTIE0 Eo5RE R LA
HIEOIRE PFEETESIER « 1R5R
TERARE B HEIREERE3
SRS OF P& R 17 Y B R A /Y
[RAY o BITARR TR {0 LA EX
SEEBVIERAR (62 EE
BVI) W2 EpEmIA RETH S
BB BVIRDAREG BhiEs
AR ([FSHsE]) e s
BHARBIK AR SR EH N
PERRARER - SIS E B IR S
ERESE AR - M ShE
MEENBBERASHEITNES
BREERRRETE -
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B RS ERAR BT RE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries and have been prepared

as if the Group had always been in existence.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

1 EEEEH8OR (8)

(b)

SV e A ) S o (A0

Y B R TN P et
BT RESIEREAEE—
BAFAE o

REBBRERANTERES
JE s PR AR ELAE -

EREERENTEBBYBRE
ERMBM B RAR - AEHERK
ROERLHEE - AfF - A
RXHMH2/ReERTENH
B - (AR AR - ZE AT

BARRERBEELBMEEE
AERERBEAAREENESEL
WEZBER  MABERKR
EREEEEIANABREESE
AN B A B0 BR T E RS 1R BT Y
KiE - ERERAEANRNZE
ftist e



1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(©)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 28.

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are

exercisable are taken into account.

1

"
%@/&’f@\ JUST FOR YOU

HEAEHBOR (F)

(b)

(©)

SV e A ) S o (A0

BEEESHEENZSMET A
FABER - HESFHEFTREETE
HIEHERTWBMHELETE - A
BERETeEZARAER i
BB E A KRR AR
BRE  AEFERETNEER
R HAREER o

EREEEMRABTAYBRE
EAFMEL S E B ERAE

FENAE - ARG THEE
MR ERHR - RIEE28 5 °

FiE S 2 ) e e I i

MBARRESAREIZHNE
B I EREARE AR AR~
MEENM B MEERER - WE
SR E P IS o T
BEHEERGE  F2EEE A
TR BERRE -
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B RS ERAR BT RE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(©

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no

evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

1 EEEEH8OR (8)

(©)

FiE S 2 i) e e e i i (4)
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BEEENANER - LEEB
AHME  AEEERZAR
BEFIZBFEME AR AR #
AR EER OISt EIEE R

o

Bl



1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(©

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1 (j) or (I) depending on the

nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

1
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(©

(@)

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
When the group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled
entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(g)(i)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (note
1(g)ii)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of an asset. The cost
of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

1 EEEEH8OR (8)

(©)

(d)

FiE S 2 i) e e e i i (4)
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EEGFHBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
(d)  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) d) W3k~ WG Bk i (40)

WL EYME - BFERKREBEA
B EE - T EMRSRIEFE
HARMEARREENEZR IR
ARk E B MERAPHER

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

FEDIBWE  BERKER
B BB AN R EL {5t R EREE (10
B mTaEFAEAERA
MEAETE MM

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 20 years after the date of
completion.

Leasehold improvement is depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives of 1 to 10 years.

Machinery 10 years

Vehicles and other equipment

5 years

RAE T Erigs X
7 88 75 b4 oK TR 40 9 B 1
SRR E
(BDR 3 T B B4 4838 20
f) o

AERENITETIAKRR
40 B £ {8 5+ AT 5 A 4F 27
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress (“CIP") represents property,
plant and equipment under construction and pending
installation, and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (note 1(g)(ii)).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction during
the construction period. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the CIP is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when the asset is substantially ready for its
intended use.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

1 EEEEH8OR (8)

(d)

Yok ~ W B il ()

¥ - BEMERBEMEEH
FERETRNAEREES
%R B EL A #R 7 PTG TR B AR
FAEREELERDR - &
AN RITE - BEMNAE
REMRERSBER(ME)BE
E T /N

FRIRB(TERIR] 2IEE
BRNSTENDE  BERE
& Wi AR AT AR EEE
(B QI FITR) ©

BN B AR S HA R B B R SR K
o HEERR EAERE BE
o ZERABELERE £
BIRIBAME  BEL&RE
BEAA -



1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing cost, where applicable.
Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortization and impairment loss
(see note 1(g)(ii)). Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated in the statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated

useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
Hg(ii)).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

®

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible asset with finite useful life is amortised from
the date it is available for use and its estimated useful
life is as follow:
- Software 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

LEASED ASSETS

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)  LEASED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term.

(g) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

@

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
trade and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

@

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
trade and other receivables (continued)

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 1(g)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 1(g)(ii).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

@

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
trade and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

@

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
trade and other receivables (continued)
Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(it)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

property, plant and equipment;
intangible assets; and
pre-paid interests in leasehold land

classified as being held under an operating
lease.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

(h)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 1(g)(i) and (ii).

INVENTORIES
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

@

(k)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(g)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
1g)(i)).

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U]

(m)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at

fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost

unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,

in which case they are stated at cost.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

@

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the options will
vest.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it

is released directly to retained profits).
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

INCOME TAX

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to business combinations, or
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the financial position
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each financial position date and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.

1

"
%{Zf%’@\ JUST FOR YOU

HEAEHBOR (5

(n)

B AL (4)
THABELEHRREENAERDN
EREREEBUTERSHISN
B RIS T E &R IR
MEE  TREERERT G
MEEER A B VIAFER (I
BEBGA GO — 8D AR
AERBREMNBARANERER
(MBRERABER - ARNAE
B A] AT ) BB R T B
BIFER AL Y NG A ek g0k 2
RER: BRI ENER - A
KRR AR 7] 88 7£ 5 2k [ 5 10 =
Yo

7

EEBRARETRREEMNEER
EEMNEHERIFETRX R
BERHERRCEMREERM
MBERTE - EXCHBAEEMA
B TIRAE -

AEBESEMBHOREK AT
EREENIREENREE - R
TS R A ER UL
AR AR BB Aot RGBT
MEEENRRERSHE &
MR BRI EESEANER
PogH - BRREESEME -

PR BB T ZE £ R BB INPT 13
B RERAXNERARENEE
RRERAR

107



,,,,,........,,,.,nnn=n=n=n=>>—=—.
Kee

20114E%k Annual Report

Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
B RE M
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BEEEHBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
(n)  INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) (n) B (&)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BVER R EIE R IR A A TN L # B %R
movements therein, are presented separately from 2HRHINR - WA THE - A
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are HMECHIEEER@EAEHE
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax BEETH RN IBE EK
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group HENHIMIEBE WEREUT
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax PSRRI RT - A A A5 Bl
assets against current tax liabilities and the following Y BB FRIE R B & 1E

additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, - HBEEENER &
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, SEFEERFHEEEL
or to realise the asset and settle the liability g AKERZEEMN
simultaneously; or BEZEE K

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - BEEBBEEEMEE: %
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same SEEMBERNHER—
taxation authority on either: TEHBEBL A T E R —IEE

WHETS B A @ -

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each

future period in which significant amounts - TEMERNES :
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are ZEEBIEEE
expected to be settled or recovered, intend HERBEERIES
to realise the current tax assets and settle BEHREEENELER
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or JHEE A E® &
realise and settle simultaneously. fEARREARE - HF58

EEBRAATIEE

EMEEINHES

& XFAKERZE
EMBEZAE -
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(0)

®)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

1

"
%{f/@@\ JUST FOR YOU

HEAEHBOR (5

(0)
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PR AR BT RE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

@

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised in profit or loss as the asset is
depreciated or amortised. These grants are
recognised as deferred income that is amortised

as the related asset is depreciated or amortised.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

1 EEEEH8OR (8)

(p) BeawEd (&)

@

(11)

R i
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

For the purpose of presenting these financial
statements, the Group adopted Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") as its presentation currency. The functional
currencies of the KEE Zippers and the subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong are HK$ and the functional
currencies of the subsidiaries established in The
People's Republic of China (the “PRC") are Renminbi
("RMB").

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign

exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

1

"
%@/&’f@\ JUST FOR YOU

HEAEHBOR (5
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PR AR BT RE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

()

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the

exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

1 EEEEH8OR (8)

(q)

(r)

A ST ()
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‘/fgf/ﬁ’@\ JUST FOR YOU

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BEEEEHBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
(s)  RELATED PARTIES (s) BEDS
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, (a) ML AL I
is related to the Group if that person: B %N A 2 AT R S ]
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) 2 ) 3 FL R il AN &=
;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBEEARY
23

(i) is a member of the key management (i) ABARRRIZARNE
personnel of the Group or the Group's RANETEERER
parent. 8 e

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) G T IEfTEA - B
conditions applies: R RS [

(i) The entity and the Group are members of () ZERBEAEEER
the same Group (which means that each —SEBZKERA
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is (BIEBAAE - WE
related to the others); NSIAEESU ) YN

HutEAEE):
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
MR R M P S,
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BEEEHBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
(s)  RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED) (s) BE)s (M)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) 1 E T A AE 1 1
conditions applies. (continued) B 2 8 51 K SE [ 77 ]
(#4)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture (il —HELRZ—EE
of the other entity (or an associate or joint M E NRIRAE D
venture of a member of a group of which ¥(FH5—EBRRK
the other entity is a member). BREZEBETK

BARIZEE ARIK
BEME):

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEEBHAR—F
third party. =HMaEhE:

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv) —HERBARE=FE
and the other entity is an associate of the BHNEELE M5
third entity. —ERBRZE=SE

0k /NI

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit (v) EBEAASEENER
plan for the benefit of employees of either SEEMECEEHR
the Group or an entity related to the Group. & B F %5 32 S Y BE B

BAIETE

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) EEZ(#EALT
by a person identified in (a). PR ek 2 LR

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) B (a)i) FTa I A £ 5
influence over the entity or is a member ERBEEATE K
of the key management personnel of the BZER(KZES
entity (or of a parent of the entity). HERAR)ETEER

BRKE -

114




1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

O]

(®

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in these financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for the financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated

if they share a majority of these criteria.

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
A unless otherwise indicated)

Bf %5 S kB = (BSHER - A EBNBTTHH)

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 fubBORSEE)
The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to BEAGHMASDEBMHE TEETR
HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first effective BRI REER R —IBHRE IR
for the current accounting period of the Group and the AEBRAQNBNASFHBEXE
Company. Of these, the following developments are o HAp T 7 % B) BN & B ) B 7 TR
relevant to the Group's financial statements: =B :
o HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures o EHBGFTERIZE 245 (2009 F 4L

E7]) - BEH R

o Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) o EHEIEIREERMBGE (2010
%)

The Group has not applied any new standard or AEBVERAASHHB®HRER

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current B L ZTE RS2 1 -

accounting period.

The developments resulted in changes in accounting policy T BEREFSTHRRED  BZE
but none of these changes in policy have a material impact BRSEHEE RN RAARENX
on the current or comparative periods, for the following FAXE  FRAWT :

reasons:

. HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a o FHEEEAEAIFE 245 (2009 F
related party. As a result, the Group has re-assessed LIER ) HEER 2 TR ELIE
the identification of related parties and concluded e At AEECEHTEEH
that the revised definition does not have any material EBHZHEBERRE  URBRZREE
impact on the Group's related party disclosures in the Al TE & YA S BN AR KR
current and previous period. HEzBESBEETEARNER

= 0
3

o
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

° Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures. The disclosures about the Group's
financial instruments in note 24 have been conformed
to the amended disclosure requirements. These
amendments do not have any material impact on the
classification, recognition and measurements of the
amounts recognised in the financial statements in the

current and previous periods.

The Group changed its accounting policy for the
measurement of inventory cost from first-in first-out
to weighted average method during the year, which is
considered to better reflect the Group’s inventory costs.
There is no material impact on the opening balance of the
Group’s inventories as a result of such change. Therefore,

comparative amounts have not been restated.

"
%{X/ﬁ’f@\ JUST FOR YOU

2 AutEORES) (4)

o EAMBHREER B (2010
FIRBERHEBMBREE
AIE7RemIT A HREIEE
REELZIEER] - AAAEHE
SRMITEMNBECDLCERTIEF]
MR E K - ZE SR H A
MR BB R SRR ERE
Bz BRRKFELEEM
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A unless otherwise indicated)
MR R M AT (BB - FASENBTTHH)
3 TURNOVER 3 BEM
The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and REEMETEXBHARERIEE R #
sale of zippers and other related products such as sliders, REMBBEER  PIANE - mH Kk
tapes and other products. HMER -
Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to EETERNEFPHEEMEBHEERE
customers. The amount of each significant category of B-RERN ELFEFBEFEANT —
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows: FTEHFMKESTENT ¢
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Metal zippers B 78,816 86,768
Nylon zippers JERERI $# 71,689 76,992
Plastic zippers BRI 24,384 19,060
Sliders IR 4,867 5,580
Premium items 2 m 3,713 3,055
Others HAtb 6,964 7,769
190,433 199,224
No individual customer had transactions exceeded 10% of BEENEFPOZSEBRAEE S
the Group's turnover. ¥FA10% °
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4 OTHER REVENUE 4. JLfBBA
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Government grants AT B & 5,335 953
Interest income and others FLE B H A YA 1,869 140
7,204 1,093
The Group received various government grants in form REBRFRNESE M IERITZ BB
of cash subsidies from local government during the year, Heml BEAATNE B
including subsidies of HK$4,998,000 (2010: Nil) for the A I b T 9 4,998,000 3% 7T (2010 4F -
Company's successful listing on The Hong Kong Stock ) B o
Exchange.
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a unless otherwise indicated)
MR R M (R SHBI - FERTABTHE)
5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5  BRBLW A
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BrBiATEFIE B (FFA) THISE -
(a) FINANCE cosTs (a) BB
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Interest on bank borrowings RITER(EAREFTRN
wholly repayable within five years ~ 2#(8:8) |8 261 1,614
(b)  STAFF COSTS* (b) BTJEA"
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Salaries, wages and other benefits ~ T& -+ #/K X EAEF 47,058 38,378
Contributions to defined A R TR IRET 2
contribution retirement plans TEH AR 3,268 2,630
Equity-settled share-based A= E R
payment expenses (note 22) AR SE (FiEE 22) 814 -
51,140 41,008
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5  BBimA (B)
(CONTINUED)
(¢)  OTHER ITEMS (c) HAu¥H
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T T
Depreciation and amortisation* PrE ks
— lease prepayments (note 12) —HEBAH(ME12) 100 92
— fixed assets (note 12) —EEEE (KzE12) 11,672 9,449
—intangible assets (note 13) — R EE (MEE13) 664 381
Subtotal /NET 12,436 9,922
Impairment losses RIEEE
— trade and other receivables — B RAMEI
(note 17) I (F=E17) 1,075 25
Operating lease charges ERFERY 4,169 4,057
Net foreign exchange loss R E =D 108 163
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets H&EEFEE
pishe ki 237 233
Interest income B U A (1,869) (90)
Auditors’ remuneration Z A & 1,163 932
Listing expenses il ba 1,000 9,820
Research and development AR ®N 3,242 857
Cost of inventories* TFERA* 127,888 118,765
* Cost of inventories includes HK$44,030,000 (2010: * 7 & A Z& W44,030,0007% JT

HK$34,889,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation and (20104 : 34,889,000/&7C) £ 8
IA - EREFEERFR
ZESENBER XM=

5(b) TR AR & VAR ©

amortisation expenses, which amounts are also included in the

respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note

5(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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MR Rk M aE P S,
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6  HRETWERR M TR
INCOME STATEMENT
(a) INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (a) EAEBARFRN MBI
REPRESENTS:
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T T
Current tax — PRC corporate BUEAFH 1E —
income tax BEFREH
Provision for the year FREE 5,297 5,914
Current tax - Hong Kong BIERRIE — BB RIEH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year FANEE 169 1,324
Deferred tax IERERIE
Origination and reversal of TR ERN
temporary differences EEAE K FE R (950) (238)
4,516 7,000
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 B A T BE (A1)
INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING (b) BRI P S B B A &
PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: s R ay SR .
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T T
Profit before taxation A B Al 24,938 37,773

piay
Notional tax on profit before taxation, &% AT MEIZ %
calculated at the rates applicable to ~ Fi18 & 1% XAk

profits in the jurisdiction concerned — B15Z4E [& ¥ F)3E F

(note i) FIR R AT B (FIFED 6,548 12,009
Effect of non-deductible expenses ARG 2 HO 522 1,089 202
Effect of unused tax losses ARHERRE) AR

not recognised TRIERE BN E 105 157
Effect of tax concessions (note ii) MBEENZE (i) (3,258) (5,368)

Effect on deferred tax balances at ~ FiX&E&H¥1 A1 B2
1 January resulting from a change  EERIBASHRITE
in tax rate 32 -

Actual tax expense BERFIARY 4,516 7,000
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PR AR BT RE

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING

PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI.

KEE Zippers is subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at 16.5% in 2011 and 2010. The payments
of dividends by Hong Kong companies are not

subject to any Hong Kong withholding tax.

The PRC statutory income tax rate applicable
to the Company's subsidiaries is 25% effective
from 1 January 2008.

KEE (Guangdong) Garment Accessories Limited
("KEE Guangdong”) and KEE (Zhejiang) Garment
Accessories Limited (“KEE Zhejiang”), being
production-oriented FIEs with operating periods
of 10 years or more, were entitled to two-
year exemption from income tax followed by
three-year 50% reduction in income tax rate
commencing from the first profit-making year
from PRC income tax perspective (“2+3 tax
holiday”). KEE Guangdong commenced its 2+3
tax holiday in 2006 which ended in 2010 and KEE
Zhejiang commenced its 2+3 tax holiday in 2008.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

6  EREMERR MM BB ()

(b) BB Y 3 B 453 T B R it S
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING

PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(continued)

KEE Guangdong was recognized as an enterprise
of new and high technology and obtained the
approval in June 2011 from local tax authority
to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
for the two financial years ending 31 December
2012 according to relevant regulations for
enterprise of new and high technology in the
PRC.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC and its relevant regulations, PRC-resident
enterprises are levied withholding income tax
at 10% on dividends to their non-PRC-resident
corporate investors for earnings accumulated
beginning on 1 January 2008. Undistributed
earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax. Under the
Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement and
its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong
tax resident which is the “beneficial owner” and
holds 25% or more of the equity interest of a

PRC-resident enterprise is entitled to a reduced

withholding tax rate of 5%.
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6  EREMERR MM BB ()

(b) BB Y 3 B 453 T B R it S
wl Ay BRSO F ¢ (8

(ii)

(iii)
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| h ise indi d)

B RS SR R M EE (BRESI - FB A )

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 AW

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE201F 12831 A LLEE
Salaries, Share-based
allowances Retirement payment
and benefits scheme (note)
Directors’ inkind contribution IEREE

fees ¥4 EE Bk Sub-Total  BEA%f Total
BEHe  REVER  HEAR gt (fzE) @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
r T T i i 7

Executive directors HTES

Xu Xipeng Tk 200 364 3 567 - 567
Xu Xinan R 200 307 3 510 = 510
Yang Shaolin B 200 413 3 616 94 710

Non-executive director FHTES
Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert eV 300 - - 300 = 300

Independent non-executive BYHHITES

directors
Lin Bin o 140 - - 140 - 140
Kong Hing Ki T 120 - - 120 - 120
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy ik 120 - - 120 = 120

1,280 1,084 9 2,373 9% 2,467
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7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 EPHM (B
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE2010512A31 AILERE
Salaries, Share-based
allowances  Retirement payment
and benefits scheme (note)
Directors' inkind  contribution NEREE
fees Ee - RE B SubTotal  BGXM Total
ExHe  REWEN  HEMEX et (Fit3E) st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
7 i i i i T
Executive directors BiTES
Xu Xipeng Bl 17 432 11 460 - 460
Xu Xinan 8 17 362 11 390 - 390
Yang Shaolin RO 17 464 11 492 - 49

Non-executive director FHTES
Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert L 300 - - 300 - 300

Independent non-executive BYFHITES

directors
Lin Bin w3 12 - - 12 - 12
Kong Hing Ki TR 10 - - 10 - 10
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy EeE 10 - - 10 - 10

383 1,258 33 1,674 - 1,674
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7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

Note:

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors
under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share options
is measured according to the Group's accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(m)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number
of options granted, are set out in note 22.

There were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of
the highest paid individuals set out in note 8 below as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. There was
no arrangement under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments.

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2010: two) are directors, whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other two (2010: three) individuals are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

WP HW (A1)

=
FZEBREERBERARAEREF A EETERSE
fere 2 hEHEE - ZSERE ZEBETDREN
FE1(m) (i) BTt A SR BB B AR s AR AR 2 A9

135 2 WETREH -

ZEEYMN S FE(BEEREBRENTE
RIS ERE ) M FE 22 R IRER

AEDMBE N REN FEFR T XM
= H A TR E A TBIE AR R E N
BAREERERIMAKRH RS RERAE - #
BEENEARBREEAHES O

I v B A L

FEBEaHFMALTH BE3IZARES
(20104 : 24) * HEOFTHAMET
HHEE - BIN2E (20104  3H)&ES
FHALOEFHEENT

2011 2010

$'000 $'000

F T

Salaries and other emoluments e R B A F B 749 1,137
Discretionary bonuses BI5IEAL 36 152
Retirement scheme contributions ROREEIER 23 44
808 1,333
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8§ INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8 mrmFHmAL (8)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The emoluments of the two (2010: three) individuals with 2% (2010F : 3R ) REFMA LN
the highest emoluments are within the following band: BN F AT EE -
2011 2010

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T AT E 1,000,0008 7T 2 3
9 PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO 9 A I HERR B R HEAY B A
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE (W)
COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of KRR =R REGGRERNEE
the Company includes a profit of HK$16,676,000 (2010: Loss 16,676,000 7,2 % F(20104F : 11,326,000
of HK$11,326,000) which has been dealt with in the financial TLZEHE) BERFARA T2 IS HRERA o
statements of the Company.
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company'’s profit/ Pl BEARRFNEF,(EIE)
(loss) for the year: 2 R
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T T
Amount of consolidated loss AR BB BIREA
attributable to equity shareholders 2 IR EELR S EE
dealt with in the Company’s
financial statements (324) (11,326)
Final dividends from subsidiary FLUARTEA B E EAE B A F)
attributable to the profits of A 2 KRR S
previous financial years 17,000 -
Company's profit/(loss) for the year KARERHEF, (EE)
(note 23(a)) (P&E23(a) 16,676 (11,326)
Details of dividends paid to equity shareholders of the BRARNFARRESBRRZEEZ
Company are set out in note 23(b). FHIB B HTEE 23(b) ©
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

11

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$20,422,000 (2010: HK$30,071,000) and the
weighted average of 410,562,000 ordinary shares (2010:
300,000,000) in issue during the year.

The effects of potential ordinary shares during the year are
anti-dilutive and, therefore, diluted earnings per share are the
same as the basic earnings per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by geographical areas.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

° Southern China and overseas: this segment
manufactures zipper products and mainly sells to
customers in Southern China and overseas market.
Currently its activities are mainly carried out in
Guangdong province and Hong Kong.

10

11

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

IR A
GRERBFTIRBEARAERERE
J& 15 & 720,422,000 7T (2010 4 -
30,071,000 % 7T ) Ei@AR 2 hE T 88
K FANB #4772 410,662,000 8% (2010
£ : 300,000,000 f%) 5+ & -

FAR BEEBRZEZERRBEN
KAt s#EEENASRER
EFER o

Vg3

AR R H LT - ERAK
EESBERABNB2HEH
BRAERAREER RO
AEBE2ATH=BAT2HAE -
IS D HE S ERATAZRS

& e

© ERERES RO BRENEE
8 LEBHETFEHRGHD
BERF - HEBRHEERER
B REBT -




11 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a)

Eastern China: this segment manufactures zipper
products and mainly sells to customers in Eastern
China. Currently its activities are mainly carried out in

Zhejiang province.

Central China: this segment manufactures zipper
products and mainly sells to customers in Central
China. Currently its activities are mainly carried out in
Hubei province.

SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors the
results and assets attributable to each reportable

segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the exception
of investments in financial assets and deferred tax

assets.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is "adjusted profit before taxation” i.e. “turnover
less cost of sales, distribution costs, administrative
expenses and finance costs”. Items not specifically
attributed to individual segment are excluded from
the calculation of segment profit. The Group's senior
executive management is provided with segment
information concerning segment revenue, profit and

assets. Segment liabilities are not reported to the

Group's senior executive management regularly.

11

"
%@/&’f@\ JUST FOR YOU

oy WA (41)

(@)

EBH o ENEES I
FTEHETEREP, - HEBKR
REENMIEHET -

Eh o goNRENEER - I
FEHETEPEP  HEBR
B BRI B T -

Vigi£3 V5344

AT G D ERIR A 5 SR 2 B
BRME ARESREREASR
RIA T ER B R RS oS EG
MEEREE

DHEEREMBEE  HETR
BERELERRAEERID -

ARHmES IR =R &
RERBA RN BN &HERE
I ER A - KRR 1T
P REERA] 58S BE
e - WA AR EBNER
DAL - AEEERERE
BABREEBS W - HF
REENDBER - AEETE
FTHRESREEABE/ROLE

io
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Eji%ﬁﬁ WEI (REEFTHIN - IESEUNBTHE)
11 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 11 233 (81)

(a)  SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) (a) A IRBEE WA (H)
Information regarding the Group's reportable 2 RIE2011 FF & 2010 F 0 &R
segments as provided to the Group's most senior DEREEFEDHBRRARNAEE R
executive management for the purposes of resource SEERABRHEEHEARAEETE
allocation and assessment of segment performance WA FHEREFS AT ¢

for 2011 and 2010 respectively is set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2011

HZ201E12A3NALEE
Southern
China and Eastern Central
overseas China China Total
ZFREH E3 E a5t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T Tr T
Revenue from external customers 8 9MRE P U 119,939 70,494 - 190,433
Inter-segment revenue HEERE 18,532 11,907 = 30,439
Reportable segment revenue T 2{HEUE 138,471 82,401 - 220,872
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 7 287 5HaF/ (FiE) 13,094 11,350 (351) 24,093
Interest expense FERE 1 (262) - (261)
Depreciation and amortisation FRIE
for the year i3z 3 (7,705) (4,731) - (12,436)
Reportable segment assets ERNAZHAHERE
at year end 203,326 114,313 12,240 329,879
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11 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 11 2 (80
(a)  SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) (a) ARBER WA (H)

Year ended 31 December 2010

HZE2010512A31 BILFE
Southern
China and Eastern Central
overseas China China Total
ZmREN B3 ey st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T Tt T
Revenue from external customers RESNRE P Wz 127,052 72,172 = 199,224
Inter-segment revenue A E 22,946 319 - 23,265
Reportable segment revenue T 2P 2z 149,998 72,491 - 222,489
Reportable segment profit AE2HHEEF 30,354 17,269 - 47,623
Interest expense FISHZ (668) (946) - (1,614)
Depreciation and amortisation ERNTEREH
for the year (6,267) (3,655) - (9,922)
Reportable segment assets ERNUZRONERE
at year end 107,820 86,150 - 193,970
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MR R M AT (RSB - FASBBTHE)
11 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 11 2 ()
(b)  RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT OBES: Zis 1/ €0V ET 34
OR LOSS AND ASSETS e I IR
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T T
Revenue e
Reportable segment revenue A 2D TP E 220,872 222,489
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ¥4 &8I S (30,439) (23,265)
Consolidated turnover mEEER 190,433 199,224
2011 2010
S Tt
$'000 $'000
Profit e Al
Reportable segment profit A 2D EF 24,093 47,623
Elimination of unrealised profit of HESHEEEFE
inter-segment purchase of REEEER
inventories and fixed assets REIE R T 571 (465)
Reportable segment profit derived REAXREBIINREFH
from Group’s external customers 7] 2R % Z0E A 24,664 47,158
Other revenue and HAbas K
other net loss HAibEs18558 6,831 1,383
Unallocated head office and ROMHEE
corporate expenses R{FRAS (6,557) (10,768)
Consolidated profit before taxation %r & B A7 %R 24,938 37,773
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11 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
(b)
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11 2 (480

RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT (b) W R IBCEE ~ WA o R &
OR LOSS AND ASSETS (CONTINUED) e I IR ()
2011 2010
$’000 $'000
T T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AI2H/HIEE 329,879 193,970
Elimination of unrealised profit of HESHHEETEN
inter-segment purchase of REIREH)
inventories (1,884) (711)
Elimination of unrealised profit of HiEn BEIE B EE
inter-segment purchase of BENRSEIRGF
fixed assets (1,156) (2,901)
326,839 190,358
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE B 1,534 556
Unallocated head office and ROMAEE
corporate assets EEE 672 6,495
Consolidated assets HREBE 329,045 197,409
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B RS SR R EE (RSB - P BT )
12 FIXED ASSETS 12 Wi
THE GROUP A 4K
Vehicles

and other  Leasehold Construction
equipment imp- in Lease
Buildings Machinery ~ /SER rovement  progress  Sub-total prepayments Total
BF BE  HitRE HERE  GRIR Nt BERR &t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T o r T T T

Cost: AR
At 1 January 2010 R2010%1 818 3445 60398 7141 5,549 - 106533 450 111,074
Exchange adjustments ERRE 1,164 2,336 265 308 84 4147 158 4,30
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RHBLAA - - 3 - - 3 - 3
Additions hE 30 6,738 1,185 182 12,004 20,229 - 20,229
Disposals & - (33%) (130) - - (3522) - (3522)
Transfer from CIP BERTRER - 38% - 4B B52) - - -
At 31 December 2010 R20105128318

and 1 January 2011 RONE1R1E 34,639 69,916 8483 10,730 3,651 127419 4699 132,118
Exchange adjustments ERRE 1723 3861 47 533 187 6,731 23 6,964
Additions hE 159 6,291 1,770 43 8,09% 16,358 - 16,358
Disposals ij = 8 (883) (217) (4] - (1112) - (1112
Transfer from CIP BERTREL - 7750 - - 1750 - - -
At 31 December 2011 RANE12R31A 36,513 86,935 10,463 11,302 4183 149,396 4932 154,328
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12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 12 e ¥ (4)
THE GROUP (CONTINUED) A4 (41)

Vehicles

and other  Leasehold Construction

equipment imp- in Lease
Buildings  Machinery FER  rovement  progress  Sub-total prepayments Total
BF BE  AMRE RERE  RRIR Nt RERA Eh
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000 $'000
$000 §'000 $'000 $000 §'000 $'000 $000 $000
S T T o T T T o
Accumulated depreciation: ZithE .
At 1 January 2010 R2010F1818 2377 (12,161) (3,770) (1,026) - (19,334) (309 (19,643
Exchange adjustments B (119) (515) (144) (58) - (836 (13) (849)
Charge for the year ERgi (1532 (G628 (1,380 (909 - B9 02 (0541
Written back on disposals REEREE - 298 4 - - 339 - 339
At 31 December 2010 20105124318
and 1 January 2011 RANE1E18 (4,028 (18,006 (5,253) (1,993 - 29,280) (414 (29,694)
Exchange adjustments EiAE (238) (989) (260) (143) - (1,630) (23 (1683
Charge for the year ERET (1670 6672 (1372 (1998) - 16n (oo (11,772
Witten back on disposals RHERED 8 535 183 - - 726 - 726
At 31 December 2011 RONE12R31A (6928 (26132) 6,702) (4,094) - (41,856) (637 (42,393
Carrying amount; HHE:
At 31 December 2011 RONE12R318 30,585 61,803 3,761 7,208 4183 107,540 43% 111,93
At 31 December 2010 R2010512A318 30611 51910 3230 8737 3651 98139 4285 102424
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

12 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 12 e ¥ (4)
THE GROUP (CONTINUED) A4 (41)
(a)  The lease prepayments are for land use right held on a (a) MEFENITIHFEZ0FH HTH

medium-term lease of 50 years in the PRC. EFERN L ERRE -

138

(b) Certain lease prepayments and buildings with an (b)
aggregate carrying value of HK$34,980,000 (2010:
HK$34,897,000) were pledged as securities for un-
utilised bank facilities of the Group as at 31 December

R2011F12A318 @
1B 434,980,000 % 7T (2010 4F -
34,897,000 ) K& TiHETE
NEREFERAEEH R AR

2011. TTRVE (R HR -
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 R
The Group
Software
REEE M
$'000
Fr
Cost: R
At 1 January 2010 201061 H1H -
Exchange adjustments b 113
Additions AR 4,788
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 7 2010F 12 A31H&X2011F1 18 4,901
Exchange adjustments b 320
Additions R 3,331
At 31 December 2011 ®w20114%12431t8 8,652
Accumulated amortisation: 4 £
At 1 January 2010 20101 A1 H -
Exchange adjustments HE 5 B 9
Amortisation for the year FNEEH (381)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 7201012 A31H&2011 4118 (390)
Exchange adjustments b H FEE (35)
Amortisation for the year FREH (664)
At 31 December 2011 7R2011%12 431 H (1,089
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 December 2011 7R20114F12A31H 7,463
At 31 December 2010 M 2010612 4318 4,511
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14 INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 14 JAWE 2\ Wb LR
The Company
ARAF
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Fr F

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD - AR - -

The balance represents the Company’s equity interest in ZEBREARQNTRKEEREBVIH K
KEE International BVI, authorised and issued share capital NI EHE2011F12A318H
of which as of 31 December 2011 are USD 50,000 (ordinary VEE KRB EITRA 5 R 450,000 E T
shares of 50,000 of USD 1 each) and USD 2 respectively. (50,000 SR EE1ETTHERBR) &
23T °
As at 31 December 2011, the Company has direct or indirect B2011F 124318 AARIRNUT
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private WEBRR (BRARE  RMERES
companies or, if established/incorporated outside Hong BN AL R S - RSB A

Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as a Hong FLARBIRBAER) BB EER 2
i o ZENMBARMFBHIINT

o

Kong private company. The particulars of these subsidiaries

Bl

are set out below:

Place and

date of Issued and fully Attributable

incorporation/ paid up equity interest

establishment capital FEE AR RE Principal
Name of company MR 23%17%  Direct Indirect activities
AREHE LR A MERMA  HE  EE  IEES
KEE The British Virgin uSsD2 100% — Investment
International BVI Islands (“BVI") holding

13 August 2010
5 5 BIFE BVI RBREXAS 2%7T  100% - REER

20108 A13H
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14 INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

14 AR E 2 B W RR (B1)

(CONTINUED)
Place and
date of Issued and fully Attributable
incorporation/ paid up equity interest
establishment capital FEAG B RE Principal
Name of company 3t B21TKk  Direct Indirect activities
NEER R 26K B ER HMERAK B B FEEK
KEE Zippers Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Trading of
1 March 2002 Zipper
products
FRZEE ] 5 1,000,000 7T -  100% BEN#EERD
200243 A 1H
KEE Guangdong The PRC HK$137,500,000 - 100%  Manufacture
21 March 2005 and sale of
zipper
products
FZER a3 137,500,000 7T - 100% HEKEE
200543 A21H 7 8 E
KEE Zhejiang The PRC uSD8,760,000 - 100%  Manufacture
9 September 2005 and sale of
zipper
products
F 2T H 8,760,000 7T - 100% AENEES
200549 A9 H 7 8 E
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14 INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 14 AR 2 vl i b A (480)

(CONTINUED)

Place and

date of Issued and fully Attributable
incorporation/ paid up equity interest
establishment capital FEAG B RE Principal

Name of company 3t B21TKk  Direct Indirect activities

NEER R 26K B ER HMERAK B BE  FEER

Foshan City UNA The PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Design and
Garment Accessories 10 June 2009 (note (i) sale of
Co., Limited ("UNA") garment

accessories

BRI T BN AR AR AR 3,000,000 — 100%  RETMIHE
e BRAR 200946 A10H (BZE ) ARE 1T
(reml)

KEE (Jingmen) The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture
Garment Accessories 23 September 2011 (note (ii)) and sale of
Limited zipper
("KEE Jingmen™) products

75 (FIF9) BRI BC 1 A AR % 10,000,000 7T — 100% AENEE
BRAA 201149 A23H (BRF=E (i) AIPEEE h
(IAEZS#IFIL)

Note (i) UNA was acquired by the Group and became a wholly-owned MizEG) M 2010F6A12H - BREAEER

subsidiary on 12 June 2010. Wig - WK ABEEKBAR -

Note (i) A new wholly-owned subsidiary, KEE Jingmen, was established in Mz () FO2EMBARMSHAMNERS

Jingmen, Hubei Province in September 2011 by KEE Guangdong. ERMN2011F9 ATEHILEHIPIAK
37 o
PREPAYMENTS FOR FIXED AND 15 Pl B e e ST ot il 9 LA K
INTANGIBLE ASSETS L]

The balance as at 31 December 2011 mainly represents the

initial lease prepayments for land use right of a parcel of land

in Hubei Province. The balance as at 31 December 2010

represented the prepayments for the purchase of property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets.

MN2011F12A3N Bz EBREEREM
BEMILE — s+ 2 T F AR
IS EEMEER - 20105612 A
STBZHEHEREEYE  BWERR
B R B E PN TR FRIE o
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Eji%ﬁﬂs—‘% WEI (BRBEEHIN - AESBEUBTAHE)
16 INVENTORIES 16 17+
The Group
TEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T T
Raw materials R H 4,249 5,859
Work in progress TR 15,740 12,020
Finished goods BIK 0 3,006 1,402
22,995 19,281
An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an RARZITRNEERARAKRNE
expense and included in the consolidated income statement ELEANT -
is as follows:
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Tt Ft
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENEREE 126,401 118,562
Write down of inventories MoRTE 1,487 203
127,888 118,765
The write-down of inventories is related to decrease in FEMREITHENE TRERIEESEZ
the estimated net realisable value of certain slow-moving st o] S I8 FE R D PTE -
inventories.
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 S50 B 30 i e Ok
The Group The Company
rEE NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $’000 $'000
T T T T
Trade debtors FEUBRIE 36,764 43,409 - -
Less: allowance for W REREE
doubtful debts (715) (106) - -
36,049 43,303 - -
Prepaid listing expenses TEf EmRX - 6,495 - 6,495
Other prepayments H A IEA ERIE 2,668 1,854 = -
Deposits and other debtors 1B R E A I GR IR 2,269 1,697 270 -
Less: allowance for doubtful B E AWK
debts of other debtors L RIBERBAE (193) - = -
40,793 53,349 270 6,495
(a)  AGEING ANALYSIS (a) REH
Included in trade and other receivables are trade RUBRRER  BREEESR
debtors (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with Hh FE YR IE A B FE Y AR IE (40
the following ageing analysis as of the statement of BRRBREME) NERERI T ¢

financial position date:
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

17 B8 B I M Bk o (4

(a)  AGEING ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) (a) WREH
The Group
TEE

2011 2010

$'000 $'000

T Ft

Current BNEA 21,869 17,783

Less than 3 months past due BHATE 31EA 12,313 25,126
More than 3 months but less B HARRA 3 E A

than 12 months past due BRZE121EA 1,867 394

Amount past due BAERE 14,180 25,520

36,049 43,303

Trade debtors are due within 30-90 days from the date
of billing. Further details on the Group's credit policy
are set out in note 24(a).

JEWARIEBEENEE R BHREE
30E90HME|E - BEAEHE
BEEBCR R — SRR HNM T
24(a) °
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE DEBTORS

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade debtors directly (see note 1(g)(i)).

"
%@/&’f@\ JUST FOR YOU

17 B8 B I M Bk o (4

(b)

MR e o
R M B TR ) Ok B HR R A B R
AW BRIEA SR ER R B FOA K
SEM - ERBERT - BEEE
7 B e AR TR E (R 2 B0
BEEE 1(0)(0)) o

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FARBRBEZSNOT :
during the year is as follows:
The Group
rEE

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Fx Fr
At 1 January BW1A1H 106 114
Exchange adjustments e H 19 4
Impairment loss recognised BERBAEESE 882 25
Uncollectible amounts written off #i$4-~ A Yz [ & 58 (292) (37)
At 31 December M12A31 8 715 106

At 31 December 2011, the Group's trade debtors of
HK$715,000 (2010: HK$106,000) respectively were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables are mainly related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that the receivables are not expected to
be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts were recognised in full. The Group does

not hold any collateral over these balances.

M20115F12A31H - K&
JE g B8R 78 715,0005% 7T (2010 :
106,000 7T ) B E AR BIRE °
B R (B FE W k1A = B B IR B
BRENETFEH BERE
AT TEEIRZ SR BGRIET A
B @it - BEEHERETRE
B AEEURMZEZHERST
BEMERD o
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

©

TRADE DEBTORS THAT ARE NOT IMPAIRED

Receivables of HK$21,869,000 (2010: HK$17,783,000)
that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no

recent history of default.

Receivables of HK$14,180,000 (2010: HK$25,520,000)
that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

(©)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

17 B8 B I M Bk o (4

A% 9 £ MO VB M

% % /221,869,000 7T (2010
4 117,783,000 70 ) HIBE K @
HIF AR ENERFIERR S A
R RS E B -

% ¥ /514,180,000 st (2010
£ 125,520,000 7T ) &9 E 18 &7
1B AR IRE &) FE U SR IE B % 2 P8
BEPEH  2EREPRASEERN
EERERL - BIBBALER -
HRNEEERUEEAEY - A
ERIDER AR WE - E
BEREBAR IS EMRIELR
EEE - AEET AR SER
A EMERG -
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 SRR DL MR i3 8L
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a)  CURRENT TAX PAYABLE/(RECOVERABLE) IN THE CONSOLIDATED (a) &% A R ULk A BP0
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION REPRESENTS: £+, (el ) BER R -
The Group
TEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T Fr
At 1 January m1HA1H 1,705 2,779
Exchange adjustments PE 5% 55 48
Provision for PRC corporate R FTIS TR
income tax (note 6(a)) (Mf7E6(a)) 5,297 5,914
Provision for Hong Kong Profits & /& M {58
Tax (note 6(a)) (Mf7E6(a) 169 1,324
Income tax paid BRFEH (7,519) (5,402)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—REKHBAR - (2,958)
At 31 December 124318 (293) 1,705
Represented by: A
The Group
TEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T Fr
Current tax payable BEApE TR IR 2,004 2,920
Current tax recoverable BNER AT U B R IR (2,297) (1,215)
(293) 1,705
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 S5 WA R DL A 1 P 443 BL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%)
(CONTINUED)
(b)  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RECOGNISED: (b) UHERBREBIREER (AH) :
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE AN & P ERART
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MIBEE/(BE)HEKRSBD LT
position and the movements during the year are as NEEBINT :
follows:
Unrealised
profit Pre-
arising from  operating PRC

intra-group  expenses  dividend

Depreciation transactions and withholding
difference  elimination  provisions tax Total
EENLS

EEfiR  SEREx  PERE
TEER FREAEH REE BB L
FiEn Fign TiEn FiEgn Fign

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Deferred tax arising from: BEHERE
At 1 January 2010 7201051 A1H - 746 198 (631) 313
Exchange adjustments B - - 4 1 5
Charged to income statement N EaEillis . (294) (98) 630 238
At 31 December 2010 and 2010512 A31B R

1 January 2011 201ME1R18 - 452 104 - 556
Exchange adjustments AR 9 - 19 - 28
Credited/(charged) to PR/

income statement (4%) 3% (40) 594 - 950
At 31 December 2011 R2011412 4318 405 412 77 - 1,534
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 18 S5 WA R DL A 1 P 443 BL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%)
(CONTINUED)
(¢)  RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION: (c) MEBIRBMKBIE -
The Group
TEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T F
Net deferred tax asset R SRR R
recognised in the statement ZIEERIRE B FAE
of financial position 1,534 556
Net deferred tax liability REABARR R KRR 2
recognised in the statement BLEHIEARSE

of financial position - -

1,534 556
(d) DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED (d) AWM EE B A -
As at 31 December 2011, temporary differences R2011F 128318 BELE
related to the undistributed profits of the Group's B NGB o i i Lok
PRC subsidiaries amounted to HK$61,719,000 (2010: RE2/561,719,00087T (2010
HK$39,619,000), of which deferred tax liabilities were 139,619,000/ 7C) - AKX
not recognised in respect of the tax that would be NSRS A PN SN
payable on the distribution of these retained profits % BZFERFERLSTENA
as the Company controls the dividend policy of these BRIk At ErERE D
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is TR 5% S5 (R B8 i M) s B A B9 B A8 7
probable that profits will not be distributed in the HEBMELEHRESE -

foreseeable future.
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 BE&RBESEY
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Deposits with banks IRITEHAITF R 86,104 -
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERS 34,373 15,584
120,477 15,5684
Less: Bank deposits with maturity 8 : ZIHiIBEA=EA N L=~
beyond three months RITER (43,549) -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEYD 76,928 15,584
As at 31 December 2011, cash and cash equivalents in 20114 12A8318 + A#74,524,000
the amount of HK$74,524,000 (2010: HK$15,009,000) are 7570 (2010 4F : 15,009,000 70) J) A
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the ARBHE THRBEEKBEFRRF
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely convertible WA FRE - AR IER B B H A
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is B R EEDESEXHREBN
subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC HYANE B 4 o
government.
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 BU5 K IUAbHEAS Bk
The Group The Company
rEE VNN
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx T T T
Trade creditors FETBRIE 7,444 5,452 - -
Payroll and staff ENTERBTRER
benefits payable 6,133 9,578 - 82
Accrued expenses JEEHF 3,492 2,091 625 -
Payables for fixed assets B F B EENRIE 1,318 3,718 = -
Payables for listing expenses  JEAf ERIS - 8,258 - 8,258
Other taxes payable E AR 1,644 744 = -
Other payables HAth e RIE 141 604 = 131
150 20,172 30,445 625 8,471




20

21

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with
the following ageing analysis as of the statement of financial

position date:

20

"
%{f/@@\ JUST FOR YOU

S 5 e U At M Aok K O (48)

ERFAE 5 M E b FE S FRIE B R AT AR
R R BRORRER DT T -

The Group
REE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
S T
Due within 1 month or on demand A1 {E B s B ks 5 2 6,855 4,911
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 71 1@ B 1818 & 31 A W EIEf 589 541
7,444 5,452
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS 21 EBEKREA

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement scheme. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the scheme at
rate of 10%-
The local government authority is responsible for the entire

14% of the eligible employees’ basic salary.

pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

NEERBEE LRSI RE S EE
PlAZBEASEBEIEENNEER
MZERER Y —HARHEAEST
El([aBesall) BB EA—
HHBLZTIAEENREHIRNK
e - REXRERTE - BERERE
8% 8/8%ESREKAR 5% mEEl
R - LAE AR A 20,0008 T A
FBR -

REBHTERBAREE NERER
RIKFFEIMKE - PEMEBARZER
FEMR REEAREEBEATEZ
10% 2 14% 3R - B IBUTE R KB
BrEERKESETESE -

/
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21 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)

The Group has no other material obligation for payment
of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions as
described above.

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS
On 27 May 2011, the Company granted 24,880,000 share

options under its share option scheme to one executive
director and eighty three eligible employees of the Group
(including four key management personnel) for subscribing
shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$1.39 per
share. The exercise of these share options would entitle the
director to subscribe for an aggregate of 2,120,000 shares of
the Company while the eligible employees for an aggregate
of 22,760,000 shares. Each option granted under the share
option scheme has a vesting period of one to five years,
commencing from the day of announcement of the 2011
annual results. The options are exercisable until 2017.

(a) THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE GRANTS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

21

22

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

D ELIB A A (480)

B bl & 2 RO REEYN EB
S ERRENEMEREE

2 45 LB S AT W 22 5

B2011F5 278 RRARRIEER
REETERAEE —BRITEEREIE
GEREEB(BIEAREBEEAR)
# H1124,880,000 10 B AR #E - LARE R
1398 TMITHEERBARAAMRY -
NTEZEERERCZETAREAHL
RE AR F 2,120,000 5 mE&
Er%fE B R R85 ££22,760,000 A%
B o RIBEBRESEREOENE
BEHEGI1E5FMTESHR B
201N FFEEERNEZ AT - B
RERF 2017 SFRIATE o

(a) W JBCHE M Bk B AT I F

Number of share options granted

RmEREHR
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Director ~ Employees Total  Contractual life
RHAH 7R 5%A gz EE At Rl
27-May-11 Tranche 1: the day the 2011 the day the 2016 318,000 3,414,000 3,732,000 6 years
annual results being annual results
announced being announced

WIEBA2TE E1t: 0NEEEEENGZA  016EFEEELGZA

6%
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE GRANTS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

22 HESRSS SR A AT B By ()

(a)  JWJBCHEM Bk BB pEnF ¢ (B

(CONTINUED)
Number of share options granted
RmBREHR
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Director ~ Employees Total  Contractual life
RHAH 7R L g2 ] At Rl
27-May-11 Tranche 2: the day the 2012 the day the 2016 318,000 3,414,000 3,732,000 6 years
annual results being annual results
announced being announced
V1ESADE BN NFFEFENMIZE  016FFEEERMGZE 65
27-May-11 Tranche 3: the day the 2013 the day the 2016 424,000 4,552,000 4,976,000 6 years
annual results being annual results
announced being announced
N1FBADE E3M NBEFERENMGZE  016FFERELGHZA 65
27-May-11 Tranche 4: the day the 2014 the day the 2016 424,000 4,552,000 4,976,000 6 years
annual results being annual results
announced being announced
N1ESADE B4 NUEFERENMIZE  0165FEEERMGZE 65
27-May-11 Tranche b: the day the 2015 the day the 2016 636,000 6,828,000 7,464,000 6 years
annual results being annual results
announced being announced
N011F5A278  FoH 0155 FERENMZE 20165 FERELHZA 65
2120000 22,760,000 24,880,000
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 HERASEIRAY AT W AR B (A1)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) THE NUMBER AND WEIGHTED AVERAGE EXERCISE PRICES OF (b) VB HE 2 B H K ImHE - 35 47 18 B
SHARE OPTIONS ARE AS FOLLOWS: ﬁu—F :
Number of
Exercise price options
THEE BREZE
‘000
:F
Outstanding at the beginning REFERARITE
of the year - -
Granted during the year FRERH $1.39 24,880
Exercised during the year FREITE - -
Forfeited during the year FRERK $1.39 (6,520)
Outstanding and exercisable AR AT S AT 171
at the end of the year $1.39 18,360
The options outstanding at 31 December 2011 had MR20115F12 A31 B ZHARITE
an exercise price of HK$1.39 and a weighted average BB Z1TEE R 1.398T N
remaining contractual life of 5.6 years. BFHFHRENMRE65F -
(¢)  FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS: (c)  JWEIBCHE 2 Fo i B fBtt -
The fair value of services received in return for the R ETEGHIREH AR
share options is measured by reference to the fair BEN2ERELNBERENAAE
value of share options granted. The estimated fair TE o ERENMETANENE
value of the share options is measured based on a RZEAEEEXGE - BIRE
binomial lattice model. The contractual life of the share B)& & BARR A ERZ AR A 8 A &
options is used as an input into this model. 5 o
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 REARAISRA SAIAE S (B
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(¢©) FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS: () JWRBCHEL ARl BBk ¢ (M)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value (weighted average) REt2BEEHE
per share option at ENARE
measurement date HK$0.46 (hniEFH8) 0.4687T
Exercise price per option HK$1.39 BiyEE
1TEfE 1.39% 7T
Expected volatility rate 50% per annum TEHR B R FE50%
Expected dividend yield 2% per annum TEHAMR B BF2%
In-service early exercise Option holder will AR EAIR F BIRERE A
behaviour exercise his/her IEEY RIREZE D
options when the BITEED
share price is at 250% F51T
least 250% of 1 K e
the exercise price.
Risk-free rate of interest b R
Tranche 1: 1.00% per annum FHE FF1.00%
Tranche 2: 1.22% per annum F24tk BF1.22%
Tranche 3: 1.40% per annum F 3L BFF1.40%
Tranche 4: 1.54% per annum Faft BF1.54%
Tranche 5: 1.65% per annum F5HE FF1.65%
Performance hurdle 90% of option WITRE R 90% KB A% 1
holders will satisfy A ANGE
performance FEATT 161
conditions.
The expected volatility is based on the Company’s own TEEDRE Y ERARBIEHE W
volatility since its listing and comparable companies’ AR E R B 1% MR F 2R A B L8R
volatility in recent years. RElZ e
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Eji%ﬁﬁ WEI (BRBBEEHI - FIESBUATE)
22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22 HERRAS ST A AT WA B (41)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(¢©) FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS: () JHRBCHEA AR fl BBk ¢ (M)
(CONTINUED)
Taking into account the probability of early exercise PP R EMIRRITEIE B A B
behaviour stated above, the expected term of the grant - BERNBHBREEALD
was determined to be around 5 years. F o
The risk-free rate of interest with expected term = PR R TR HA EABR A f [ B A1 =X
shown above was taken to be the linearly interpolated WARBRELHBEEEIINEES
yields of the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes as at BEAFFREERKEE -

the grant date.

Except for the conditions mentioned above, there B g 2 o - A BB AR A
were no other market conditions and service TR R TR R BRI R o
conditions associated with the share options.

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 HEA - BB
(a) MOVEMENTS IN COMPONENTS OF EQUITY (a) HERRMArZ2%H)
The reconciliation between the opening and AEEGAEZSBHFEINRE
closing balances of each component of the Group's RESRZ HRANG S ST E
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated F o Apal S EERIHNDRE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes NFR B S EBEI|INT

in the Company's individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:

156




|
%@/&’3@\ JUST FOR YOU
23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 HA - A OB R ()
(CONTINUED)
(a) MOVEMENTS IN COMPONENTS OF EQUITY (CONTINUED) (a) HEIRI 2 %0 (%)
The Company ¥ N/NE]|
(Accumulated
loss)/
Retained
Share Share Capital  earnings
capital  premium reserve (E&H1EE),/ Total
BA  ROHEE EXREE REEA st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
At 6 July 2010 201057 A6H - - - - -
Loss for the period HAEE - - - (11,326) (11,326)
At 31 December 2010 and 7201012 A31H
1 January 2011 R2011E1 518 - - - M326 (1132
Profit for the year FRER - - - 16676 16,676
Issuance of shares by share offer BERHEEETRG 4,150 138,096 - - 142,246
Dividends declared and paid SRRIERRE - - - (5,188) (5,188)
Equity settled share-based PR EERG
transactions RHR5 - - 814 - 814
At 31 December 2011 #2011 12 A31H 4,150 138,096 814 162 143,222
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Eji%ﬁﬁ WEI (MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)
23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 HA - A OB R ()
(CONTINUED)
(b)  DIvVIDENDS (b) A
Dividends approved and paid to equity shareholders of FAEHERB RN FAR G
the Company during the year are as follows: HREA R ST
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T T
Interim dividend declared and Bk RIS AR E B
paid of HK1.25 cents per 1.257%8\l 2 HRRR B
ordinary share (2010: nil) (20104 : %) 5,188 -
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the JER T AR A= IR B A
Company attributable to the year are as follow: MR B

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T T
Final dividend proposed after M2011412 31 H&
31 December 2011 of FhgEm1.25 840
HK1.25 cents per 2 ERIR R B B
ordinary share (2010: nil) (2010 : %) 5,188 -
The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2011 720114912 A31 B 2 R AR AR S
has not been recognised as a liability as at the date of WERIM R BEBERRALE -

the financial position.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 HAR - G BB R (B)
(CONTINUED)
(¢)  SHARE CAPITAL () B
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) BEERCFITRE
2011 2010
No. of Share No. of Share
shares capital shares capital
RIEAE BEA  RHER e
‘000 $'000 '000 $'000
T T T T
Authorised, EE
Ordinary shares of SREE0.01E T
HK$0.01 each IEEE]e 2,000,000 20,000 - -
Ordinary shares, issued LER BT
and fully paid: R#R:
1 January 2011 201MF1A1H
(HK$0.01 each) (Gh&0.01%7T) - - - -
Shares issued by share offer & B (DA EEITHIR 415,000 4,150 - -
At 31 December 2011 20115124318 415,000 4,150 - -
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(¢)  SHARE CAPITAL(CONTINUED)

@

(i)

Authorised and issued share capital(continued)

The shares of the Company were listed on
the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 12 January 2011, with a total
number of 400,000,000 shares, among which
100,000,000 shares (25% of the total number
of shares of the Company) were issued to the
public. The gross proceeds received from the
offering were approximately HK$133,000,000.
The Company subsequently over-allotted and
issued 15,000,000 shares to the public on 28
January 2011 and gross proceeds received were
approximately HK$19,950,000.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Group’s residual assets.

Shares issued under share option scheme

No options were exercised during the year as
all the options granted by the Company will not
vest until after 31 March 2012. Further details of
these options are set out in note 22 to financial
statements.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

23 B - A BB ()

(c)  JBeAs ()

@

(i1)

B R BT (%)

K oAl & K201 F
TH12B R & BB R A
FiREM BROBHE
400,000,0000% + H
100,000,000 % A% 7 ( 14
KRB 48 B K 25%)
BRARET - B UWKEH
NHABEMBRBRED
133,000,000 7T > A&
7~ A E % R2011F1 A
28 B A RABRAMD 3 R 8
715,000,000 f& 15+ 2
W) BT 1S SIB B B
19,950,000 7 T °

BB TAE AR ERE
PEEIRORE - AR
RAELEEER—FEN
KR - AR BRI #2
BEMS  MAEARE
BRI -

R 15 il IR FE T 3 T EE AT 2
Vsl
HRARARBRL AR
EEEZE2012F3A31H
A TEITHRE  MFEAL
BATHERE - BRBR
2 E—BFEINB
WEMFE227A ©




23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

@

SHARE PREMIUM

The excess of the issued price of HK$152,950,000
(HK$1.33 per share) net of any issuance expenses of
HK$10,704,000 over the par value of the shares issued
has been credited to the share premium account of the

Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

According to the Company’'s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, dividends may be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or

account which can be authorised for this purpose with

the sanction of an ordinary resolution.

"
%{X/ﬁ’f@\ JUST FOR YOU

23 B - A BB ()

(d)

JBe 4 ¥k
% 17 {8152,950,0007% JT(
fR1.33%8 L) MR BETH X
10,704,000 A& 8 1 B 31T
NEENSEDFTAETRERN
mERR o

RIEFASEERRDE(KEFT) -
fetnia ERR A M BT AR ER
R HERREZZEN KRB ZB
% ARRIBAENN BT ER
BIZPERDEER

RBAR R B 2 B ERE KM AR
A AR RIAKEBIRESERT
% AR R BRI EMHE
b E 2R B IR SRS
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(©

U}

STATUTORY RESERVE

Statutory reserve was established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the
articles of association of the Company's subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC. Transfers to the reserve were
approved by the respective board of directors.

KEE Guangdong and KEE Zhejiang, which are wholly
foreign owned enterprises incorporated in the PRC,
are required to transfer at least 10% of its net profit
(after offsetting prior year's losses), as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to
statutory general reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital under the
PRC Company Law and the articles of association of
these entities. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of dividends to the equity
shareholder.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years' losses, if any, and may be converted into
paid-up capital provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital.

CAPITAL RESERVE

Capital reserve mainly includes reserves arising prior
to and during the Reorganisation and the portion of
the grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 1 (m)(ii).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

23 B - A BB ()
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(€4]

(h)

(U]

EXCHANGE RESERVE

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries with functional currencies
other than HKS. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 1(q).

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to the equity
shareholder of the Company was HK$138,258,000
(2010: Nil).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholder and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

"
%{f/@@\ JUST FOR YOU

23 B - A BB ()

(€9)

(h)

(i)

W 36, f
EXREERREREERBITA
SN T RE B HE I I X B B S
REEWAEINEEZR - ZHEH
TyIRBHIEE 1 (q) RERO & AT BUR
BRI -

it i ¥ T 4% 23 IR P

R®20118F12 A31 8 » A #DIKE
FTARAREZRRNFEELER
138,258,000/8 7L (2010 : 4&) o

AT B
AEEEREANERERIR
EARBENRAELERD W
BB ERK T BE R MRS E
B AR BIA A K ARG &
B TERBRREREBREAE
e FIZE AR R & R A&

REBEER KL E RS EAREE
TRIARER NEBRSEBEX
FrIGE BRI SRR @ R E R
o EY B AR TS R 4F e R AR
ZHEBETE - WHEERERE
ME(CHEARBIELFE -
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(U]

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings,
and obligation under finance lease), less cash and
cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity.

During 2011, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2010 was to maintain the adjusted
net debt-to-capital ratio below 20%. As of 31
December 31, 2011, the Group does not have any
debts from banks. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholder, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholder, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

23 B - A BB ()

()
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the

normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@)

CREDIT RISK

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30-90 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are past due are
usually requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the

Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

"
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24 A BEAY B K A ARl

AEBEHEBOEER -

RBEELE

BRRDERAEEREXBERERE
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AEBMAEBNZEFRR - 8RR
EERERAEEEREZSARRS
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(a) fREmBE

AEENEERRIZREES
MEMEWTIE - EREREE
ERR  UREEEZSFEER

B -

HESHREMBKFIEME + &
EEURBER—EHEEE
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B BKWESRIBERHKRER
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate and therefore certain
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. 16% of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s five largest customers as at 31
December 2011 (31 December 2010: 17 %).

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide
any guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 17.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investments of cash surpluses and
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

24 i B 4 B B 4 A ()
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24 AR BE A B K A e fh (%)

FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b)  LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) (b) REE LB ()
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRINTREBRAKBAREE
maturities at the financial position date of the Group's SHEERTHENIHA R
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual BadxRTRB\EeRE (BEN
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments RPN EFEOT SRR
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based FEVFIE - BB EAARKRER
on rates current at the financial position date) and the WITHERFE)) RAEE T
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: ERINMEFEEE
At 31 December 2011 M2011%F12831H

Contractual

undiscounted

cash outflow

BHAREER
RERLERH
Within 1 Carrying
year or on amount at
demand 31 Dec
1R BBRRE
RERE IREE
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Trade and other payables 5 R EME B 20,172 20,172
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24 AR BeAY B % A o (%)

FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b)  LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) (b) REE LB ()

At 31 December 2010 #®2010F 12 A31H
Contractual

undiscounted

cash outflow

BHIARIIR
Remt e
Within 1 Carrying
year or on amount at
demand 31 Dec
1R BBARRE
INEESiSS REE
$'000 $'000
T T
Trade and other payables 5 R EME B 30,445 30,445
Bank loans RITER 28,774 28,205
Total Bt 59,219 58,650
The short-term liquidity risk inherent in this contractual RZe N2 HAEENEHRE
maturity date has been addressed after the financial HREREBEBFBEMRNE AR
position date by the cash generated from operating LEEBPTISIR SR -

activities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(¢) CURRENCY RISK
Individual companies within the Group has limited
foreign currency risk as most of the transactions are
denominated in the same currency as the functional

currency of the operations in which they relate.

(d) ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUE
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

"
%@/&’f@\ JUST FOR YOU

24 i B 4 B B 4 A ()

(c) EW MBS
FR A 7R 55 B P {1 Bl 2 B B9 KD
DR G ABRE S EEFARNI
BEEMBRARMNESE 8K
EH)IMNEREBR

) Anfifit
R2011F K%2010F12 A31 B
BN S SE A AR B BR D AR SR [ K2
ARRzHBITAZREERA
AREMEERER -

COMMITMENTS 25 ARIf
(a) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS OUTSTANDING AT 31 DECEMBER 2011 (a) JA20114F %20104:12 31 H »
AND 2010 NOT PROVIDED FOR IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R I S A 3 VA AR o S A Y A
WERE AS FOLLOWS: ARG :
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
F Tt
Contracted for =EIE:S) 11,615 2,011
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25

26

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) AT THE FINANCIAL POSITION DATE, THE TOTAL FUTURE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELNETHE)

25 7RI ()

(b) RMBRBERH > HIRA W 88

MINIMUM LEASES PAYMENTS UNDER NON-CANCELLABLE 4085 AL AT 1 AR 20 I I AL 4 A
OPERATING LEASES ARE PAYABLE AS FOLLOWS: mm—F :
The Group
REE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T T
Within 1 year 196K 4,592 4,279
After 1 year but within 5 years 1418185 X 568 3,796
5,160 8,075
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 26 WA RS

TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the directors are of the view that related
parties of the Group include the following individuals/
companies:

Name of related party  Relationship with the Group

Xu Xipeng and Xu Xinan  Ultimate controlling parties and

key management personnel

Nicco Worldwide Inc.
(“Nicco”)

Foshan Nanhai Zhuyuan

Immediate holding company

A company controlled by a
Hardware Store close family member of the
("Zhuyuan")

UNA

key management personnel
A company controlled by a
close family member of the

key management personnel

FRN EFZRR AEENEESTE
FEUATAL/ AR :

BELER HEAEENBER
BB RETEE SRERAREE

EEAE
Nicco Worldwide BEIZERAF
Inc. ([ Nicco )

BlUTmREERER HIBEEBRAR

KREERE HIIREHNAR
R (TIRIR]D)
B HEIZEBAEHN

IMRIEHIN AR
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 26 WABHEITRY (4)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION (a) FEFHA B FH W
Remuneration for key management personnel, FTEEBASHFN(BIENT7A
including the amounts paid to the Group's directors as WEINTFAEEESENFHIE)
disclosed in note 7, is as follows: s

The Group
TEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
T T
Short-term employee benefits pSEGI==EEwl 3,043 2,942
Contributions to defined MR E R FERIRET SR
contribution retirement plans 16 17
Equity compensation benefits s ER T 157 -
3,216 2,959
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note FmrEst ATE IR (M
5(b)). 5(b)) °
(b)  RECURRING TRANSACTIONS WITH OTHER RELATED PARTIES (b) HIABBIEGWEERY
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Rentals paid to BUTEAXZFES
- Ultimate controlling parties — ERIRPER T 3,761 3,682
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) NON-RECURRING TRANSACTIONS WITH OTHER RELATED PARTIES

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(MR BEFAIN - FTESELBTHE)

26 FEKBEITE S (H)

(c)  SUICAb TG W T R0 28 B

The Group
rEE
2011 2010
$’000 $'000
T T
Merchandise purchased from R TS EER®
- UNA — 1B - 1,308
— Zhuyuan — KR - 612
- 1,920
(d) AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) A SUBSIDIARY (d)  MEM CHEAT) — 1) B I 28 il sk

The Company
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Fx T
- KEE Zippers — RS 143,174 (9,350)

The above balances are unsecured, interest free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

bR RS - B RERE

B

SR o

fik
%
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IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTIES

The directors consider the immediate controlling party
as at 31 December 2011 to be Nicco, while the ultimate
controlling parties of the Company as at 31 December 2011
to be Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group's financial condition and results of operations
are sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and
estimates that underlie the preparation of the financial
statements. The Group bases the assumptions and
estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that the Group believes to be reasonable
and which form the basis for making judgements about
matters that are not readily apparent from other sources.
On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates.
Actual results may differ from those estimates as facts,

circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those
policies and the sensitivity of reported results to changes
in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered
when reviewing the financial statements. The significant
accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The Group
believes the following critical accounting policies involve
the most significant judgements and estimates used in the

preparation of the financial statements.

27

28

.
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Ik:Y 83539

BEREHE201MF12A31BNE
BT A Nicco » MARAEE2011
F12 A31 BOSKIERT AIrHE L
ERFFHELE -

BEA GG BRI B

AEBNT BN MEEXBEHRE
HRHMBEHRRABENEE L R
BEREATE - AREUAAEER

REENBELRKEMTRBREE
REBRREGEFHOER  MZEL
B S R ARG 3 3 R B2 1 H A SRR BE
MEEFLHABNEE - EREESR
BUEHMGFHELFME - ARERSB
5R CRERMRANRE - MEREE

BEBRIRNZFMET

EEHNMBRRE  FEZENEE
BREZSTRRNERE  HEMAX
ERRELEZENHE RE BT AR
AE - UREEHREEHRARBRR
HENGERES - TEGFHRERET
RIFEET - AEEBE U TERES
BREFERAEMBEREAEBH
REEMHE LA -
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) IMPAIRMENT
(i)  Non-financial long-term assets
If circumstances indicate that the net book
value of property, plant and equipment and
lease prepayments may not be recoverable,
these assets may be considered “impaired”,
and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of
assets. The carrying amounts of these assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling price and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for the Group's assets are not
readily available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of sales
volume, selling price, material costs and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including sales volume, expected

changes to selling prices and operating costs,

and discount rate.

(2)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBETHIN - FTESENETE)

28 EEEErGHGE A B (41)
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HWEBABTYE W5
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EEEER T AERN - A
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BEMTSRE  FHH
AERE St EE -
EEBEER  BEME
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AEEEE - AERER
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

IMPAIRMENT (CONTINUED)

(i)  Receivables
The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability
of the debtors to make the required payments.
The Group bases the estimates on the ageing of
the trade and other receivables balance, credit-
worthiness of the debtors and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs

would be higher than estimated.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account the estimated residual value, if
any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group's historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account upgrading and improvement
work performed anticipated technological changes,
and legal or similar limits on the use of assets. The
depreciation and amortisation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes

from previous estimates.

"
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28 EEEErGHGE A B (41)

(2)

(b)

WRAA (%)

(i) JEYCHKIE
NEBBEB A EEED
TR EEHRER
HEHREEE - AEE N
B 5 K& E fth FE WK IE 4 £
IR - BBEANEER
BEMBEECREENER
HEFEER - MEBKAD
AR R T - B
RS PMEETEEE -

it K B s

Bl E EES AL BEMA RIRE
BB &  EEEMNGAIE
RERANRELEFRTE - &
SETHERRNEENMGAIER
FR - AEEHMEMN RS HME
RANFTEBREE - JERAF
HERREBEASESRBEENA
ERBRIEEBITETOIRK
HETE - BRI EE RE
REEMERSIAURGIME
5 AR E R B fAET IR ERE
8 Alg AR T E R
HERELFE -
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 28 :EE @t B hwi (%)
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(¢)  INVENTORIES ) HE
The Group determines the write-down for rEBSETHRETENMOR -
obsolescence of inventories. These estimates are ULE A TIRB B AT RIS
based on the current market condition and the BB EMEBELREL
historical experience in selling goods of similar nature. AR FET R & B i A e S o

It could change significantly as a result of change in
market condition.

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 OAMHMRAERE20114E12H 31
NEW STANDARDS AND H Ik 47 BE WG R A3 2 BT~ Wi
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT e [ B iR 2 e S
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2011
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, Rt EMBHRERTIZEBE  FESE
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and MASEAMLZHEEITIREZERE UK
interpretations and five new standards which are not yet FIBFER - ZEEE] - RERIE
effective for the year ended 31 December 2011 and which AIREZE2011 612 A31HIEFEHE
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These W WEMBRRTERAZEE
include the following which may be relevant to the Group. Al REBRFTER - AlREHAR K E AR

FREET - B RERmMT ¢

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BT B 2 2 BAIRRY

EREIE
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures 1 July 2011
— Transfers of financial assets
BV BREREETROEET PRIE: BRE-—cHEEEE 201MF7A1H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes — Deferred tax: 1 January 2012
Recovery of underlying assets
BAEGERIE1 29 HERT FRiSH —IRIERIE - WEIEREE &= 20121 A1H
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 CAMEBREE20114£12 131

NEW STANDARDS AND H k47 B8 g R A 2 45T ~ Wi
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT HEH B B W R R 2 (4)

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUT RHIs 2 &BAIRHY

SEHIREXN
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1 July 2012
— Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income
BEGERIE1RAERT TRITAZY-Hi2HEWAIEER Z 275 20125 7H1H

HKFRS 9
ERP B MEERIER

HKFRS 10
BAEMBREEE105

HKFRS 12
BB RS ERE 1255

HKFRS 13
BAEMBREEE135

HKAS 27
BAGTHERE275

Financial Instruments
SR A

Consolidated financial statements

ONSNIpL e

Disclosure of interests in other entities
HWHEMERER R

Fair value measurement

NAEETE

Separate financial statements (2011)

BB FEHREK (20114)

1 January 2013
201351 A1H

1 January 2013
2013F1H1H

1 January 2013
201351 A1H

1 January 2013
20131 H18

1 January 2013
201351 A1H
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 EAMGMHRERE20114E12H 31
NEW STANDARDS AND H Ik 4F B W R A B2 45T - B
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT HE R R B2 W R U 2 ()

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2011 (CONTINUED)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUT RHIs 2 &BAIRHY

EHBREN

Revised HKAS 19 Employee benefits 1 January 2013
BEGTHERE195 (BER]) EEEH 20131 A1H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of NEBE I EZEEET - FEQ R
what the impact of these amendments, new standards SETEEEREELENSE KA
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of BIRGEREE B MEET - HERRBRIE
initial application but is not yet in a position to state whether SO AEFERN AN LELER
these amendments, new standards and interpretations BB R R A E A o
would have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operations and financial position.

30 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 30 6 A R e 0 2 )48 J0
REPORTING PERIOD
After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed R RE s EEEHDRERLR
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 23(b). B o E— IS AW EE 23(b) HHEE o
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Glossary

= &,

AR

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the MRXESBEIEIN  EARFERA - T

following terms shall have the following meanings. BEBRUTHESE -

“Board” means the board of Directors

[EFg ] i EFg

"CG Code” means code on corporate governance practices as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules

[{bEER<TAl] b EWARAIM SR 14 FRE S EE R BT

“CAGR"” means compound annual growth rate

[EEFIER% ] g WEFIBRE

“Company"” means KEE Holdings Company Limited, an exempted company

incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman
Islands on 6 July 2010, the Shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

[AR27A]] i F2ERERAT - R201057 A6 AREBEHRESHSEETMAL
RERRERAF - AROHREBBZAER T

“Controlling Shareholder(s)"” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in the
context of the Company, means Nicco, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan

[ PEAR AR R LR T2 R R ATIXERME + #ENiocco ~ TaIEITAE TR
Virtas

“Director(s)” means the director(s) of the Company

[EZ%] g KABIES

“Group” means the Company and its subsidiaries

[A&HE ] g RARREMEBAF

“HK$" and “HK cents” means Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong

(7Tl & ] b EREEEMES T RA

“Hong Kong” means the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

[&%E] b R EE B RIITH R

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” means The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ & B EE AP b ERBERSMBR AT

“KEE Guangdong” means M5 (BE) REMRMHGHAERABIKEE (Guangdong) Garment

Accessories Limited), a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 21 March 2005 and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
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Glossary
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[FHHER]

“Listing Rules”

[EmRA

“Main Board"”

[ ER]

"Nicco”

[Nicco

"OEM"
[OEM]

“PRC" or “China”

[

“Prospectus”

[ B E?E

“RMB”
[AR¥]

"SAP system”

[SAP %t

“Share(s)”
[

"Shareholder(s)”
[ A% R |

means

means

=]
B

means

means

=7
B

means

=1
B

means

means

=]
B

means

=1
B

M5 (ER)REEGHAER AR 72005 A3 821 BEFRBEKIAN
BRRAR BAARMEEEZEHEBNHERR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange
BRM R PES E AR A

the stock market operated by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
which excludes the Growth Enterprise Market and the options

market
HAESHIFEENRETNS  TEIELIERLIHETS

Nicco Worldwide Inc., a limited liability company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands on 3 May 2004, being 49.75% owned by
Mr. Xu Xipeng, 49.75% owned by Mr. Xu Xinan and 0.5% owned
by Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert as at the date of this report, and
a Controlling Shareholder

Nicco Worldwide Inc. * 7200445 A3 B £ =B i B & Ak
ZAERAR (BIRARE BHI49.75% AFHES L EME ~ 49.75%
MR X 0.5% HEAME R EAEER) - WRIERKR

original equipment manufacturer or manufacturing

R 8E (7))

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this
report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of
the PRC and Taiwan

REARANE  SAREMES - TREEE - REURPIFRIITR
2 R&E

the Company's prospectus dated 31 December 2010
AAFIBEIA20106F 12 A31 BOBRER

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

hEIEEEB AR

an enterprise resources planning system development by SAP
AG of Germany and its affiliated companies
F7EE SAP AG R EBBATIREMNCEERAERR

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RRABA P FAEE 0.01 BT 2 Befn

shareholder(s) of the Company

RRFPIR






	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務概要
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事及高級管理層履歷
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合收益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	詞𢑥
	封底

